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Corporate InformationNotice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders

Notice is hereby given that the Annual Meeting of the shareholders of the Company will be held on Friday 29th June 
2018, at 13h30 in the Boardroom of Constance Group, 5th Floor, Labama House, 35 Sir William Newton Street, Port 
Louis, to transact the following business:

1. To consider the Annual Report for the year ended 31st December 2017.

2. To receive the report of BDO & Co., the External Auditors of the Company.

3. To adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31st December 
2017.

4. To authorise the Board of Directors to fix the remuneration of the External Auditors, BDO & Co., who have 
expressed their willingness to continue to act as External Auditors of the Company and will be automatically 
reappointed.

5. By separate resolutions, and in accordance with article 21.2 (1) of the Constitution of the Company, to re-elect 
the following persons who, retiring by rotation, offer themselves for re-election as directors of the Company:

  a. Mr Jean Ribet

  b. Mr Noël Adolphe Vallet

6.  Shareholders’ questions.

By order of the Board,

Marie-Anne Adam, ACIS
For La Gaieté Services Ltd
Secretaries

14th May 2018

Notes

A member of the Company who is entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his/her 
stead. A proxy needs not be a member of the Company.

The instrument appointing a proxy, any general power of attorney or written resolution appointing a representative should reach 
the Company Secretary, at the registered office of the Company, 5th Floor, Labama House, 35 Sir William Newton Street, Port 
Louis, not less than twenty-four hours prior to the time scheduled for the meeting, i.e. by 13h30 on Thursday 28th June 2018 (being 
the last business day before the meeting). In default, the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

A proxy form is included in this Annual Report and is also available at the registered office of the Company.

For the purpose of this Annual Meeting, the Directors have resolved, in compliance with section 120 of the Companies Act 2001, 
that the shareholders who are entitled to receive notice of the meeting and attend such meeting shall be those shareholders whose 
names are registered in the share register of the Company as at 5th June 2018.

Directors

Name Country of  
Residence

Board  
Appointment

Committee Assignment

George J. DUMBELL Mauritius Independent – 
Chairman

Chairman of Corporate Governance (and Nomination & 
Remuneration)

Nicolas BOULLÉ Mauritius Non-executive

Marc FREISMUTH Mauritius Independent Member of Corporate Governance (and Nomination & 
Remuneration)
Member of Management Investment

Clément D. REY Mauritius Executive Member of Management Investment

Maxime REY Mauritius Non-executive Chairman of Audit (Risk Management)

Jean RIBET Mauritius Executive Member of Corporate Governance (and Nomination & 
Remuneration) 
Chairman of Management Investment

Georgina ROGERS Mauritius Non-executive Member of Audit (Risk Management) 

Noël Adolphe VALLET Mauritius Non-executive Member of Audit (Risk Management)
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Secretaries
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35 Sir William Newton Street,
Port Louis 
Represented by: 
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Mr Yan Béchard, ACIS

Share Registry and Transfer Office
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35 Sir William Newton Street,
Port Louis

Auditors
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Chartered accountants
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Partner: Mrs Ameenah Ramdin, FCCA, ACA

Internal
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered accountants
18 CyberCity,
Ébène
Represented by: Mr Michael Ho Wan Kau

Bankers

The Mauritius Commercial Bank Ltd

Registered Office

5th Floor, Labama House,
35 Sir William Newton Street,
Port Louis
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Report of the Directors
(continued)

Report of the Directors

Dear Shareholder,

The Directors of Belle Mare Holding Limited (BMH) have 
pleasure in presenting to you the Annual Report of the 
Company together with its Audited Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31st December 2017.

Overall Performance and Key Financial 
Elements

The Group’s underlying investments made significant 
progress during 2017, with Investments in Financial Assets 
gaining MUR 688 million. The increase in IBL’s share price 
on the Stock Exchange and the improved reference price 
of Afrasia Bank Ltd were the main contributors to this 
increase.

As a result of the revaluation exercises undertaken at 
subsidiary and associates levels and the above mentioned 
gain in investment, Group total assets grew by 33% to 
MUR 3,735 million compared with MUR 2,819 million 
the previous year. Total investments, including land  
and building, stood at MUR 3,729 million (2016:  
MUR 2,778 million). 

Group revenue was MUR 55.6 million, compared with 
MUR 38.0 million in 2016. Operating profit grew by 74% 
to MUR 37.0 million (2016: MUR 21.2 million). Net profit 
was MUR 40.9 million (2016: MUR 939.2 million which 
included a net gain on derecognition of financial assets of 
MUR 933.7 million).

Business Overview (continued)

Stock Market

SEMDEX, the performance index of the Stock Exchange 
of Mauritius (SEM), ended 2017 at 2,202.14 points, which 
represented a 21.8% rise for the year (2016: 1,807.37 
points). Capitalisation of the official market at the end of 
December 2017 was up by 22.99%, to reach MUR 265.8 
billion. SEMTRI, the total-return index, grew by 25.32% 
to 7,906.46 points (2016: 6,309.09 points), and SEM10 
index closed higher at 421.82 points (2016: 345.04 
points). In comparison with 2016, the price-earnings 
ratio for the overall market averaged 12.49, a fall of 
23.80%, and the average dividend yield fell to 2.96% from 
3.29%. Some 651 million shares changed hands for a total 
value of MUR 15.408 billion. 

In 2017, principal indices grew in line with major global 
stock markets.

World’s Stock Markets In 2017 

Global stock markets have ended 2017 on record highs. 
The MSCI all-country world index gained 22% over the 
year.

The Dow Jones Industrial Average boosted by 
25.1% to 24,719.22, the S&P 500 recorded a gain of 
19.4% to reach 2,673.61, and the Nasdaq 100 went up 
by 31.5% to 6,396.42.

The FTSE 100 hit a new peak, with an all-time closing 
high of 7,687.77, adding £141bn to the value of Britain’s 
top companies. 

A 19% gain was recorded by Japan’s Nikkei 225.

Portfolio Overview

The Company’s investment in IBL remains the largest 
holding in the portfolio. As a result of the amalgamation 
with GML Investissements Ltée in 2016, IBL became 
the largest Mauritian group commanding among the 
highest market capitalization of the local stock exchange. 
Clustered in nine business segments, the group ambitions 
to reinforce its Mauritian activities while building up its 
regional and international presence. Latest results released 
for first semester, to 31st December 2017, showed a 13% 
growth in turnover, which resulted however in a lower 
profit, compared with 2016, on account of a slightly 
reduced operational profit.

The performance of the subsidiary of Hotelest Ltd, 
Constance Hotels Services Ltd (CHSL), was better than 
previous year as all hotels were in operation. CHSL 
achieved strong results from Mauritius and Seychelles 
hotels, which were however dampened by the slowdown 
in activities recorded by the Maldives properties. CHSL 
is actively pursuing its new phase of expansion: the 
first phase of redevelopment of its new lifestyle brand 
C Palmar was completed in December 2017 and, more 
recently, management of operations of Aiyana Hotel in 
Pemba Island, Zanzibar  was taken-over and the hotel 
rebranded Constance Aiyana.

In the financial sector, Afrasia Bank Ltd, in which your 
Company holds 6.1% of its share capital, recorded 
a decrease in profitability for the six months to 31st 
December 2017 mainly due to higher provisions and 
lower net trading income. As a result, the bank posted 
profit before tax of MUR 517.8 million, compared with 
MUR 688.1 million.

Outlook

Against the backdrop of a dynamic and unsteady external 
context, the challenge remains for our policy deciders 
to create the environment conducive to stimulating 
public and private investment and adequate sectorial 
performances to achieve satisfactory GDP growth. To 
this end the accelerated public-sector projects pertaining 
to the metro-express, road decongestion programmes, 
the rebound experienced in the construction and 
sustainable growth in tourism and financial and insurance 
sector are key ingredients to achieve economic growth 
targets. The challenge remains bolstering investors 
sentiment and business confidence and streamlining the 
decision-making process – which factor is still impacting 
ease of doing business.

Dividend 

The Company declared and paid a dividend of MUR 0.80 
per share in December 2017, bringing the total dividend 
paid for the year under review to MUR 48.36  million 
(2016: MUR 48.36 million). 

Business Overview

Economy 

The Mauritian economy showed signs of renewed 
dynamism, with economic growth rate at market price in 
2017 at 3.8%.  Investment grew by 4.6% in 2017.

The respective performance of the main industry groups 
was as follows: 

(i) Agriculture, forestry and fishing: contracted 
by 0.2%. 

(ii) Manufacturing: grew at a rate of 1.4%, after a 
growth of 0.3% in 2016.

 Sub sectors performances: growth of 2.4% for sugar 
milling, expansion of 0.2% for food processing and 
contraction of 0.7% for textile manufacturing sector 
whilst other manufacturing sectors grew by 4.5%. 

(iii) Construction: rebound by 7.5%, after a ‘no 
growth’ registered in 2016.

(iv) Accommodation and food services activities 
grew by 4.6% in 2017. Tourist arrivals grew from 
1,275,227 in 2016 to around 1,341,860 in 2017.

(v) Financial and insurance activities: growth of 
around 5.5% during the year.

Main Economic Indicators

  2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

GDP at market prices (MUR billion)  459.9 434.8 409.9 392.1 372.4

Investment growth (% of GDP)  4.6 3.7 (5.4) (6.0) (3.3)

Inflation (%)  3.7 1.0 1.3 3.2 3.5

Unemployment (%)  7.1 7.3 7.9 7.8 8.0

Gross international reserves at end of June (MUR billion)  181.3 168.7 139.9 121.4 105

Source: Statistics Mauritius
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     Restated
The Group  31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014  31 Dec 2013 

Revenue MUR ’000 55,583 38,023 46,937 32,581 43,338
Operating profit  MUR ’000 36,980 21,204 34,897 23,327 39,335
Profit after taxation MUR ’000 40,935 939,156 48,100 112,662 44,223
Total assets  MUR ’000 3,735,193 2,818,828 2,486,589 2,473,708 1,828,174
Owners’ interest  MUR ’000 3,704,636 2,788,558 2,472,189 2,463,493 1,825,224
Total borrowings MUR ’000 27,349 18,586 10,270 - -
Earnings per share  MUR 0.68 15.54 0.80 23.73 9.66
Dividend per share  MUR 0.80 0.80 0.80 8.00 8.00
Dividend yield  % 2.25 2.88 3.25 3.02 3.40
Net asset per share  MUR  61.29 46.13 40.90 407.55  427.78
Share price                              MUR 35.60 27.80 24.60 265.00  235.00
Price–earnings ratio  52.35 1.79 30.75 11.17 24.33
Volume of shares traded  930,014 894,749 172,181 76,899 6,795

On June 22nd, 2015, ordinary shares of the Company were split so that each existing ordinary shares are subdivided 
in the ratio of 10 ordinary shares for every 1 ordinary share held. 

Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for 
ensuring that your Company complies with standards 
of good corporate governance and best international 
practice. It approves risk strategy and policies, and 
delegates their formulation, implementation and 
monitoring to committees of the Board, the Internal and 
External Auditors and Management. In turn, Management 
have primary responsibility for maintaining and enforcing 
procedures, practices and controls within their sphere 
of responsibility, and for ensuring that the Board is kept 
informed, in a timely manner, of all risk-related issues that 
may affect the Company.

The Group continues to refine its approach to integrate 
its social, environmental and financial responsibilities in a 
better manner. This is clearly outlined in the Corporate 
Governance and Social Responsibility section of this 
report. 

Although the Group is a strong proponent of corporate 
governance and good practices, it would not wish the 
regulators to lose sight of the realities of the local 
business environment and thereby introduce guidelines 
that are neither relevant nor specific to the needs of the 
Mauritian market. It is imperative that companies are 
allowed to grow their business and shareholder value 
in an efficient and transparent manner, and within a 
conducive business environment. 

Code of Ethics and Conduct

Your Company is committed to the highest standards 
of integrity and ethical conduct in its dealings with all 
its stakeholders. It has adopted a Code of Ethics and 
Conduct that emphasises standards that have been part 
of the Company’s unwritten daily code of behaviour, 
which goes beyond the requirements of law.

Acknowledgements

On behalf of the Board, we wish to express our sincere 
appreciation to the Company’s Management for its 
dedication and commitment during the year under 
review. 

To our dear shareholders, thank you for your continued 
trust. We hope to count all of you amongst our 
shareholders for years to come.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its 
behalf on 29th March 2018.

George J. Dumbell Jean Ribet
Chairman Director 
 Group Chief Executive Officer

Key Financial Results and RatiosReport of the Directors
(continued)

Sector Allocation

46% Multi-sector activities 41%

24% Hotel 26%

16% Finance 17%

6% Property 6%

4% Industry 5%

3% Commerce 4%

1% Investment 1%

0% Others 0%

Asset Mix

Year ended 31st December 2017 2017 2016
 MUR’000 MUR’000

Listed investments – SEM 1,886,777 1,296,972
Listed investments – DEM 63,335  49,096
Unquoted investments 595,293  483,640
Property 205,529 160,522
Associated companies 978,206 787,614
Current assets 6,053 40,984

Total 3,735,193 2,818,828

Top Five Holdings

Year ended 31st December 2017 MUR’M

Ireland Blyth Ltd 1,155
Hotelest Ltd 875
AfrAsia Ltd 481
Property 211
MCB Group 125

Total 2,847

2017 2016
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Directors are aware of their legal duties, as outlined in 
the Board Charter and the Director’s Code of Ethics and 
Conduct and other related documents handed to them 
on appointment and during their induction. 

Directors’ Duties

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible and 
accountable for all the affairs and general performance  
of the Company, in accordance with the Board of 
Directors’ Charter. 

Appointment and re-election 

Nominations to the Board comply with the Company’s 
Director Nomination Policy. Some Directors are 
nominated by virtue of an existing protocole d’accord 
between the Company’s four main shareholders. The 
Board, through the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee, follows a rigorous, formal and transparent 
procedure to select and appoint new Directors. The 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee leads the 
process according to the Company’s Constitution 
and Nominations Policy. The Committee makes 
recommendations to the Board, based on specific criteria, 
either to fill a casual vacancy or to appoint additional 
Directors to add to the existing Directors. These shall 
not be less than eight or more than eleven, as per the 
Constitution of the Company.

An induction programme is provided to newly appointed 
Directors, who are given an information pack, which 
includes, inter alia, financial and performance-related 

Statement on Corporate Governance

In line with its Statement on Corporate Governance, 
your Company is engaged in adhering to the Code 
of Corporate Governance issued by the National 
Committee on Corporate Governance, and in upholding 
standards of corporate governance through Company-
wide awareness of its business ethics and the stewardship 
and supervision of its management by the Board of 
Directors and committees of the Board.

The Company’s comprehensive Risk Management 
Programme, which clearly defines responsibility for risk 
and compliance, and outlines risk coverage and policy as 
well as the required supporting infrastructure, is now 
well established and fully operational. It comprises a 
framework of key committees of the Board, an Internal 
Audit function, a Compliance function, External Auditors, 
and an array of policies and standards. 

The National Code of Corporate Governance for 
Mauritius (2016), which moves towards an “Apply 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Statement of Compliance

(Section 75(3) of the Financial Reporting Act)

Name of Public Interest Entity: Belle Mare Holding Limited

Reporting Period: 1st January 2017 to 31st December 2017

We, the Directors of Belle Mare Holding Limited, confirm, to the best of our knowledge, that the PIE has complied 
with all its obligations and requirements under the Code of Corporate Governance, except for:

- Section 2.2.6: Annual Re-election of Directors: non-compliance with this section of the Code is explained in the 
Corporate Governance report (page 9). 

- Section 2.8.2: Remuneration of Directors: the reason for non-compliance being that Directors’ remuneration is 
disclosed by category in view of the confidentiality and sensitivity of the information (page 25).

Signed by

George J. Dumbell Jean Ribet
Chairman Director 
 Group Chief Executive Officer

Date: 29th March 2018

reports, a copy of the Company’s Code of Ethics and 
Conduct for Directors, Board Charter and key policies. 
Site visits and meetings with Senior Management are  
also arranged. 

The Board does not favour the re-election of Directors 
on an annual basis, as it does not consider this practice 
to be in the best interest of the Company. However, in 
accordance with the amendment made to the Company’s 
Constitution at the Company’s 2012 Annual Meeting, 
not more than one third of the Directors in office retire 
at every Annual Meeting – the latter being eligible for  
re-election. The Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee reviews the appointment of each retiring 
Director who makes himself/herself available for re-
election. It submits its recommendations to the Board, 
which, in turn, submits the re-election of the relevant 
Directors to the shareholders for their approval. 

Board Evaluation

Directors are invited to participate, every two years, in 
an individual and collective assessment, by means of a 
questionnaire completed by each Director and based 
on predetermined and approved performance criteria. 
When deliberating on the performance of a Director, the 
latter abstains from the assessment to avoid any conflict 
of interests.

and Explain” basis takes effect from the financial year 
beginning 1st July 2017. The Board acknowledges that 
the Company has applied the principles of the Code, to 
the extent relevant to its operations, and is committed 
to reporting in accordance with this Code, as from its 
annual report 2018.

The Board

The Company, which is managed by a unitary board, 
had two Independent Directors, four Non-executive 
Directors and two Executive Directors during 2017. 
Considering the nature of the Company’s operations 
and the diversity of skills, experience, knowledge and 
perspectives of the Directors from different industries 
and backgrounds, the Board considers that the size and 
mix of the current Board of Directors are appropriate for 
maintaining focus and enabling effective decision-making. 
The Chairman is an Independent Director. A Profile of 
Directors is given on pages 59 and 60. 

Board Composition by Type of Directorship and Gender

25% Independent

87% Male50% Non-executive

13% Female

25% Executive

Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility Report
(continued)

Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility Report

Type of Directorship Gender
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Executive, Non-executive and Independent 
Directors

Our team of Directors is a strong source of internal and 
external experience, advice, and judgement.

Group Chief Executive Officer

The Group Chief Executive Officer is responsible for: 
making recommendations to the Board; achieving 
the Group’s strategic objectives and the executive 
management of the Company. He works closely with the 
Group Head of Corporate Affairs and the Group Head 
of Finance.

Company Secretary & Company Secretariat

All Directors have access to the advice and services 
of the Company Secretary. The Company Secretariat 
ensures good flow of information to the Board and its 
Committees and between Senior Management and the 
Directors. The Secretariat facilitates the induction of 
Directors and assists them in fulfilling their duties and 
responsibilities. Through the Chairman, The Secretariat 
is responsible for advising the Board on corporate 
governance and generally keeping the Board up-to-
date on all legal, regulatory and other developments. It 
ensures effective communication with shareholders and 
provides assurance that shareholders’ interests are duly 
taken care of.

Share Registry and Transfer Office

The Company’s Share Registry and Transfer Office 
is at ECS Secretaries Ltd, which is responsible for the 
management of its Share Register. Shareholders may 
address, in writing, any administrative enquiries regarding 
their personal details, dividend payments and the like to 
ECS Secretaries Ltd. 

Committees of the Board

Three Board Committees have been constituted to 
assist the Directors in the discharge of their duties. Each 
Committee has written terms of reference incorporated 
in a charter, which has been approved by the Board 
and is subject to regular review, as dictated by changes 
in regulations and the Company’s environment. The 
Chairmen of the Committees are invited to report 
during Board meetings on matters addressed by their 
Committees.

Board Evaluation (continued)

The findings are reviewed by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and tabled to the Board of 
Directors, which validates an Action Plan on corrective 
measures to be taken. The last assessment was carried 
out in 2017 and the evaluation process confirmed that 
a majority of Directors considers the Board to be 
effective and well balanced. All corrective measures have  
been implemented.

The results pertaining to the Board Committees were 
communicated to the Chairman of each Committee, for 
appropriate corrective measures to be taken. 

The Board, on recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, considers that the 
current assessment of the Board and its Committees 
satisfies the Company’s requirements. It has adopted not  
to have recourse to an independent Board and 
Committee evaluator.

Training and development

The Board also recognises the importance of ongoing 
professional development and training to sustain an 
effective, well-informed and functional Board. During the 
last financial year, some Directors and Senior Officers 
received training, dispensed by local institutions, on 
corporate governance, financial and industry-related 
matters.

Information to the Board and Committees

The Chairman and the Company Secretary ensure 
that Directors receive the right information in a timely 

Audit (Risk Management) Committee

The Company’s Audit Committee, which is also 
responsible for the Company’s Risk Management 
function, consists of three Non-executive Directors. The 
Board has elected a Non-executive Director as Chairman 
of this Committee. Whilst the Code recommends that 
this Committee is chaired by an Independent Non-
executive Director, the Board of the Company believes 
that the Chairman has the relevant qualifications, financial 
expertise and experience to discharge his responsibilities. 
Other members of the Committee are financially 
literate and have relevant expertise, as indicated in their 
respective profile. The Committee is scheduled to meet 
at least four times a year and operates within the scope 
of its charter, which has been approved by the Board. 
Its principal functions are to ensure the integrity of the 
financial statements, oversee the financial-reporting 
process and direct the Risk Management function, with 
the support of the Internal and External Auditors and 
the Compliance function. The Committee reports to the 
Board of Directors at each Board meeting. 

The Group Chief Executive Officer, the Group Head of 
Finance and representatives of the compliance, internal 
and external audit functions all attend the Committee’s 
meetings on invitation.

During the year under review, the Committee met on 
four occasions. Principal matters considered by the 
Committee in 2017 were as follows:

• Review and recommend to the Board the 2016 
Audited Financial Statements, the Annual Report, 
Unaudited Quarterly Financial Statements and 
Quarterly Abridged Financial Statements for 
publication.

• Recommend to the Board of Directors the 
declaration of dividends. 

• Make recommendations to the Board for the re-
appointment, remuneration and terms of engagement 
of the External Auditors. 

• Assess and monitor the Company’s underlying risk 
profile.

manner to enable them to make informed business 
decisions. The prime responsibility for setting the agenda 
of board meetings, and ensuring that key information, 
both quantitative and qualitative, is made available to 
the Board, lies with the Chairman who decides on the 
adequacy of information to ensure that the Board’s 
information needs are met. At the last assessment, 
the Board and its Committees found the information 
provided to them to be adequate. 

Key roles and responsibilities

There is a clear division of responsibility between the 
Chairman and the Group CEO. Whilst the Chairman has 
overall responsibility for leading the Board and ensuring 
its effectiveness, the Group CEO is responsible for 
managing and leading the business of the Company.

Chairman

The Chairman is responsible for: ensuring the efficient 
operations of the Board and its committees; for seeing 
that corporate governance matters are dealt with; for 
representing the Group externally, and, particularly, for 
communicating with the shareholders at their Annual 
Meeting. Working closely, but independently, with 
the Group Chief Executive Officer, the Group Head 
of Corporate Affairs and the Company Secretary, the 
Chairman also ensures that new Directors receive 
a full and formal induction to the Company and its 
business, and that all Directors are kept fully informed of  
relevant matters.

Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility Report
(continued)

Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility Report
(continued)

Matters may be added  
to the agenda, under Any 

Other Business, in response 
to external events, Director 
requests and any relevant 

topics driven by the current 
operating environment  

of the Company.

Agenda prepared  
by Company  

Secretary to determine 
key current and ongoing 
business topics for the 

Board Meeting

Chairman reviews 
the draft agenda for 
the Board Meeting

Chairman, Group 
CEO and Company 
Secretary finalise the 

agenda

Agenda, Minutes 
and Board Papers  

circulated to Board 
Members at least 

five days prior to the 
scheduled date of the 

Board Meeting
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Statement of Remuneration Philosophy 

The Board’s Corporate Governance (and Nomination & 
Remuneration) Committee is responsible for, inter alia, 
implementing and reviewing the Company’s Directors 
Remuneration Policy and making recommendations  
to the Board accordingly. Four key principles underpin 
this policy: 

i. Remuneration must reflect the market in which the 
Company operates.

ii. Key performance indicators will apply to deliver results 
to the Company.

Committees of the Board (continued)

Audit (Risk Management) Committee (continued)

Internal Control

The Board of Directors has delegated the responsibility 
to the Audit (Risk Management) Committee of the 
Company to ensure the effectiveness of internal control, 
processes and systems. The Audit (Risk Management) 
Committee has set adequate policies to provide 
reasonable assurance that risks are identified and 
managed appropriately. Any serious issue arising is taken 
at Board level.
 
Corporate Governance (and Nomination & 
Remuneration) Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee, which also 
has responsibility for the Nomination & Remuneration 
function, consists of three Directors (two Independent 
and one Executive). The Committee operates within 
the scope of its charter, which has been approved 
by the Board. Its principal functions are to direct and 
monitor implementation of the Company’s Corporate 
Governance Programme as well as matters pertaining to 
nominations and the performance and remuneration of 
Directors and Senior Executives. The Compliance and 
Company Secretarial functions ensure that Directors 
are updated on relevant laws, regulations, guidelines and 
listing requirements. The Committee reports to the 
Board of Directors at each Board meeting. The Group 
Chief Executive Officer is a member of the Committee.

During the year, the Committee held five meetings. Its 
broad achievements were:

Corporate Governance 

1. Recommend to the Board, for approval, the 
Company’s Annual Report for 2016, with regards 
to the Corporate Governance and Corporate Social 
Responsibility Reports and the Statutory Disclosures.

2. Approve the Group Corporate Social Responsibility 
Plan for 2017, under the banner of ‘Fondation 
Constance’, and monitor its performance on a 
quarterly basis.

iii. Remuneration is to be linked to the creation of value 
for shareholders.

iv. Remuneration is to reward both financial and non-
financial performance.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee affirms 
that the fees paid to the Board and its Committee 
members and Senior Officers in 2017 are in line with the 
above principles and hence adequate. At its last review, 
the Nomination & Remuneration Committee proposed 
not to change the fees pertaining to the Board and 
Committee for 2018 but to undertake a market review 
for application in 2019.

3. Review and approve new policies. 

4.  Review the implications of the National Code of 
Corporate Governance for Mauritius (2016) and 
establish an Action Plan for compliance.

5.  Review the letters from the Financial Reporting 
Council, with respect to our 2016 Annual Report, 
and pertaining to compliance with IFRS regulations 
and the Code of Corporate Governance. 

Nomination and Remuneration 

1. Evaluate Nominees for the annual re-election of 
Directors and make recommendations to the Board.

2. Assess the effectiveness/performance of the Board 
and Committees and establish Action Plan for 
improvement. 

3. Enhance and monitor the Directors and Senior 
Officers’ Register of Interest/Insiders Share Dealings/
Conflict of Interest and Related Party.

4. Review the delegation of powers by the Board. 

5. Establish a Succession Planning Model.

6. Establish Board and Committee Meeting dates for 
2018.

Management Investment Committee

The Management Investment Committee was set up 
to implement and manage, on an ongoing basis, the 
Company’s investment strategy, including any revision 
of the investment policy and guidelines, subject to the 
Board’s approval. The Committee is chaired by the 
Group Chief Executive Officer and consists of two senior 
members of Management and an Independent Director 
representing the Board. 

During 2017, the Committee met on three occasions to 
monitor movements in the portfolio and consider new 
investment opportunities, in line with the Company’s 
strategy.

Board and Committee Attendance 
 Committees of the Board
   Corporate  
  Audit Governance 
 Board of (and Risk (and Nomination  Management 
 Directors Management) & Remuneration)   Investment

Number of meetings held in 2017 3 4 5 3

Meetings attended

George J. DUMBELL 3  5
Nicolas BOULLÉ 3
Marc FREISMUTH 3  5 3
Clément D. REY 3   3
Jean RIBET 3  5 3
Maxime REY 3 4 
Georgina ROGERS 3 4
Noël Adolphe VALLET 3 4

For 2017, Directors’ annual fees were MUR 130,000 for the Chairman and MUR 80,000 for other Board members. In 
addition to the above, the annual fees for Members of Committees of the Board for 2017 were as follows:
   Corporate
   Governance
 Management Audit (Risk (and Nomination & 
 Investment Management) Remuneration) 
 Committee Committee Committee 
 MUR MUR MUR

Chairman - 70,000 40,000

Board Representative 15,000* 50,000 30,000

* per meeting

Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility Report
(continued)

Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility Report
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Risks and Mitigation Initiatives (continued)

• Portfolio Concentration Risk: Failure to 
diversify the Company’s portfolio may adversely 
affect its financial position. The Company invested 
mainly in a multi-sector operating entity, IBL, as well 
as in companies operating in commerce, hospitality 
and finance sectors. 

• Political, Economic and Financial Market 
Events: Investment values and returns could be 
adversely affected and, consequently, so could the 
Company’s operation and financial results. Changes 
in the macroeconomic and investment environment 
are assessed regularly by the Management Investment 
Committee and quarterly by the Board, to ensure 
prompt decisions are taken to safeguard the value of 
the Company’s investments. 

• Technologies and Systems: To varying degrees, 
the Company is reliant upon certain technologies 
and systems for the smooth and efficient running 
of its business. Disruption to these technologies or 
systems could adversely affect its operating costs 
and efficiency. To mitigate this risk, the Company 
has invested in preventive maintenance and holds a 
contract with its IT service provider that caters for 
the prompt restoration to normal service to minimise 
any adverse impact on the business.

• Credit Standing: The Company is reliant on 
having access to credit facilities to meet its capital 
requirements and effectively manage its statement of 
financial position. If the Company does not manage 
its finances in a responsible manner, it may lose its 
credibility and, as a result, its ability to borrow at 
favourable terms. 

The Company has various policies and methods to 
counter these risks effectively, as outlined in this 
Corporate Governance Report and in the Notes to the 
Financial Statements, on pages 44 to 46. The Company 
also has Director and Officer Liability Insurance Cover.

Compliance Function

The Compliance function within the Company is under 
the responsibility of the Group CEO, with a functional 
reporting line to the Audit and Corporate Governance 
Committees of the Company. During 2017, the Company 
complied with its Compliance Charter approved by  
the Board.

Risks and Mitigation Initiatives

Besides the financial risks highlighted in the Notes to 
the Financial Statements on pages 44 to 46, some of the 
more prominent risks to which the Company is exposed 
are as follows:

• Reputation: Any event that materially damages 
the reputation of the Company and/or any failure 
to sustain its appeal to its shareholders could 
adversely affect the market value and attractiveness 
of the Company. This is managed by the Board and 
Management through the enforcement of an ethical 
code of conduct and good corporate governance 
practices. 

Risk Management Framework

The Company is constantly faced with a variety of 
risks, which could adversely affect its performance and 
financial condition. Being responsible for managing these 
risks, the Board ensures that your Company has in place 
a system of internal control and risk management, and 
continually monitors and reviews this system’s adequacy 
and effectiveness. The Company’s Risk Management 
framework, which extends across the Company’s  

Auditors

External Audit

The Audit (Risk Management) Committee makes 
recommendations to the Board in relation to the 
appointment, termination and oversight of the 
External Auditor. It also ensures that key partners 
within the appointed firm are rotated from time  
to time. 

The criteria for the selection, appointment and re-
appointment of the External Auditor are:

• Expertise and reputation of the accountancy firm.

• Access to expert international accounting standards, 
research relevant to the investment industry, 
demonstrable audit quality control processes and 
substantial resources to carry out the assignment. 

• Competitive fees. 

• Ethics, safeguard of objectivity and independence. 

The key aspects of the External Auditor selection, 
appointment and re-appointment process include  
the following: 

• The Board is responsible for appointing the External 
Auditor, subject to the approval of shareholders. 

• The Audit (Risk Management) Committee reviews the 
External Auditor’s performance and independence 
and benchmarks the cost and scope of the external 
audit engagement, prior to their appointment and 
thereon annually.

• The appointed External Auditor is required 
to present to Management an annual external  
audit proposal. 

• Management, in consultation with Audit (Risk 
Management) Committee, will approve the scope of 
the audit, the terms of the annual engagement letter 
and audit fees. 

• The External auditor will prepare the annual 
engagement letter on behalf of the Audit (Risk 
Management) Committee. 

• Upon engagement, the External Auditor has 
unfettered access to Management, staff, records and 
company facilities, and is allowed reasonable agreed 
time to conduct its audit.

• Financial and Regulatory compliance: 
Non-compliance with financial and regulatory 
requirements may result in fiscal penalties and 
damage to the Company’s image on the market. In 
mitigation, a programme of procedures and internal 
monitoring has been put in place by the Compliance 
and Accounting functions, with the aid of the Internal 
Audit and monitored by the Audit (Risk Management) 
Committee, to ensure that financial and regulatory 
requirements are adhered to. The Quarterly Financial 
Statements and the Abridged Financial Statements 
are scrutinised by the Audit Committee and, 
subsequently, reviewed and approved by the Board.

business, comprises a top-down approach, with strategy, 
policies and risk appetite approved by the Board of 
Directors, and their formulation, implementation 
and monitoring delegated to the Committees of the 
Board, the Internal and External Auditors, and Senior 
Management. In turn, line managers are responsible 
for continuous compliance with all laws, codes, rules, 
regulations, procedures, policies, and standards of good 
industry practice. The Company’s Risk Management 
Programme was instituted in August 2006 and is 
reviewed periodically.

Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility Report
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Directors’ and Senior Officer’s Interests and 
Dealings in Shares

The Company’s Share Dealing Policy gives clear guidance 
on the practice to be followed when dealing in shares 
of the Company or companies connected with the 
Company by business or common shareholding. All 
Directors, Senior Officers and Associates wishing to 
deal in the securities of the Company or its subsidiary 
must comply with the statutory provisions concerning 

Auditors (continued)

External Audit (continued)

Prior to approval of the audited financial results by the 
Board, the External Auditor is invited to attend the 
Audit (Risk Management) Committee meeting to review 
all matters related to the audit, covering critical policies, 
judgements and estimates. The Audit (Risk Management) 
Committee discusses with the External Auditor and 
Management matters of significance which are included 
under “Key Audit Matters” in the Independent Auditor’s 
Report. The Audit (Risk Management) Committee 
ensures that it is satisfied that these matters have been 
appropriately addressed. Whenever the need arises, in 
addition to the review of final accounts, the External 
Auditor is invited to meet the members of the Audit 
(Risk Management) committee. 

BDO & Co. have been the external auditor of the 
Company for more than 10 years and have expressed 
their willingness to continue as the Company’s External 
Auditors and, in accordance with the provisions of 
the Companies Act 2001, and on recommendation 
of the Audit (Risk Management) Committee, will be 
automatically reappointed at the forthcoming Annual 
Meeting of Shareholders. In view of the mandatory 
rotation, they will be rotated out in 2020. 

Internal Audit

Internal Audit is an appraisal function established to 
examine and evaluate the activities of the Company 
independently, as a service to the Board of Directors 
and to Management in general. The Internal Auditors 
are entrusted with the responsibility of appraising the 
policies and procedures and the operating, financial and 
management controls of the Company to ensure that  
the business is properly managed, and of promoting 
effective controls at reasonable cost. The Internal 
Auditors report to the Group CEO but also have a 
functional reporting line to the Chairman of the Audit 
(Risk Management) Committee.

insider dealing in the Companies Act 2001 as well as 
the Securities Act 2005, and the Stock Exchange of 
Mauritius’s Model Code for Securities Transactions by 
Directors of Listed Companies. Furthermore, Directors 
and Senior Officer are notified by the Company of the 
commencement and closure of non-trading periods.

No transactions were undertaken by the Directors 
and Senior Officer of the Company or parties related 
to Directors or Senior Officer of the Company in the 
Company’s Shares during the year 2017. 

The Company has an Internal Audit Charter, which has 
been approved by the Board and governs the Internal 
Audit function in terms of responsibility, role, scope, 
authority, independence, reporting procedures, auditing 
standards, and external relationships. It also highlights the 
unrestricted access that the Internal Auditors have with 
regard to the records and Management of the Company.

Owing to the nature of the Company’s business, services 
of the Internal Auditors are requested as and when 
deemed necessary by the Board. 

Internal Audit function 

The Company has no workforce but has a Board of 
Directors and Board Committees, which meet on a 
quarterly basis or more frequently, if necessary, to 
take any decision regarding the Company, to approve 
the interim and final accounts of the company as well 
as to declare dividends and monitor risk. As such, the 
requirement for a permanent internal audit function is 
not considered essential. Moreover, the Board reviews 
annually the need to establish a permanent internal audit 
function and is of opinion that the current arrangement, 
which involves the appointment of a service provider 
to carry out an internal audit, on a bi-annual basis,  
is sufficient. 

Management Services Agreement

The Company has a Management Services Agreement 
with Constance Corporate Management Ltd (CCM), in 
which the Company holds a 16% interest. Under this 
agreement, CCM provides the entire range of services 
to the Company in the fields of strategic planning, 
general and corporate affairs, financial accounting and 
management, legal and tax, company secretariat, finance 
and development.

The fees charged, based on a percentage mix of net asset 
value, market capitalisation and net profit, and advisory 
fees related to the company’s financial and investment 
plan, amounted to MUR 13.3 million for the year  
under review. 

Policies, Charters and Codes 

The Company has adopted the following key policies and charters, which have been approved by its Board:

Policies Charters 
Anti-money-laundering Audit (Risk Management) Committee
Anti-Trust Board of Directors
Conflicts of Interest and Related Party Transactions  Compliance 
Corporate Social Responsibility Corporate Governance Committee 
Data Protection Fondation Constance 
Dividend Internal Audit 
Environmental Management Investment Committee
Equal Opportunities Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
Nomination Risk Management 
Remuneration
Risk Management Other related documents 
Share Dealing Board and Committees Self-evaluation Questionnaires
 Code of Ethics and Conduct
 Code of Ethics and Conduct for Directors
 Statement on Corporate Governance

Certain policies and codes are subject to review at least annually whilst charters are reassessed every two years, unless 
otherwise required.  

Interests of Directors and Senior Officer as at 31st December 2017 
  Direct Indirect
 No. of shares % Held % Held
Directors
George J. DUMBELL - - -
Marc FREISMUTH - - -
Clément D. REY 1,210 0.00 1.54
Jean RIBET - - 3.24
Maxime REY - - -
Georgina ROGERS 1,172,150 1.94 -
Nicolas BOULLÉ - - -
Noël Adolphe VALLET 8,000 0.01 2.88

Senior Officer
Kevin CHAN TOO 111,000 0.18 -

Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility Report
(continued)

Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility Report
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Shareholders’ Agreement

The Company is aware of the protocole d’accord that 
exists between four of its main shareholders who 
together hold the majority of the Company’s share 
capital. The protocole d’accord, which is important in the 
Company’s governance process, principally governs the 
allocation, among shareholders concerned, of certain 
seats on the Company’s Board, votes at Shareholders 
Meetings and the manner in which shares held by them 
can be disposed of.

According to the provisions of the said protocole d’accord, 
the main shareholders have the right to appoint nominees 
for the majority of the nine seats on the Company’s 
Board. The Company’s Corporate Governance (and 
Nomination & Remuneration) Committee ensures that 

The Company maintains a comprehensive Register of 
Interest/Insiders Share Dealings/Conflicts of Interest 
and Related Party in respect of all Directors and Senior 
Officers. This Register is kept up-to-date through verbal 
declarations made by Directors at each Board meeting, 
written submissions made by Senior Officers, when 
appropriate, and written annual returns submitted by 
Directors and Senior Officers. 

Any disclosure of interest is recorded in the Interest 
Register, which is available for inspection during normal 
office hours upon written request made to the Company 
Secretary.

Conflicts of Interest and Related Party 
Transactions

The Company’s Conflicts of Interest and Related Party 
Transactions Policy provides a structure which ensures 
that all transactions pertaining to the operation of the 
Company and its subsidiary are properly disclosed 

Data Analysis on Shareholdings as at 31st December 2017 

Size of Number of Number of Percentage
shareholding shareholders shares owned shareholding 

1–500 157 22,472 0.037
501–1,000 56 49,928 0.083
1,001–5,000 174 454,493 0.752
5,001–10,000 74 569,359 0.942
10,001–50,000 116 2,457,138 4.065
50,001–100,000 18 1,309,210 2.166
100,001–250,000 9 1,491,110 2.467
250,001–500,000 2 619,000 1.024
Over 500,000 18 53,473,280 88.464

Total 624 60,445,990 100.000

Shareholder Number of Number of Percentage
category shareholders shares owned shareholding

Individuals 529 28,197,736 46.649
Insurance and Assurance Companies 7 7,241,510 11.980
Pension and Provident Funds 9 1,556,070 2.574
Investment and Trust Companies 8 83,185 0.138
Other Corporate Bodies 71 23,367,489 38.659

Total 624 60,445,990 100.000

the nominees meet the qualification criteria prescribed 
by the Companies Act 2001, the Code of Corporate 
Governance for Mauritius, and the Company’s Director 
Nomination Policy, and that they are able to discharge 
their responsibilities effectively and in a transparent 
manner for the benefit of the Company as a whole.

Dividend

The Company’s dividend policy is to distribute to its 
shareholders a regular dividend payment that reflects 
the Company’s financial performance, after taking into 
account any current and forthcoming investments. 
The dividend payment is subject to the solvency test 
being satisfied as required under Section 61(2) of The 
Companies Act 2001.

and can be adequately managed without detriment to 
the reputation and integrity of the Company and its 
stakeholders in so far as it relates to good corporate 
practice. At each Board meeting, Board Members and 
Senior Officers are invited to make relevant declarations 
in addition to those already disclosed. 

No related-party transactions had been reported by the 
External Auditors following their audit, apart from those 
disclosed on page 58 of the Annual Report.

Contracts of Significance

During the year under review there was no contract of 
significance to which the Company or its subsidiary was 
a party, and in which a Director of the Company was 
materially interested either directly or indirectly, besides 
the Management Services Agreement reported in the 
Corporate Governance Report on page 16.

Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility Report
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Substantial shareholders holding more than 5% of the Company’s share capital, and shareholding 
structure as at 31st December 2017

99.99%

Société des Fraisiers
13.69%

Mrs Josiane Rey
13.04%

Manvest Ltd
12.97%

Swan Life Ltd
11.76%

Mrs Nicole Vallet
7.09%

Estate J. Clement Rey
6.11%

Société Cléane
5.05%

Belle Mare Holding  
Limited

Société de 
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CORPORATE VALUES AND CORPORATE 
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

Corporate Values (continued)
Environment

Although the Company’s activities do not have a direct 
impact on the environment in which it operates, the 
Board of Directors recognises its obligations to respect 
the environment. As a responsible entity, it strives to do 
business with partners that respect the environment.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

Mission

The Constance Group believes that it has a duty to care 
for the well-being and development of the communities 
in or around the areas in which it operates and that 
its involvement and contributions are therefore not 
considered as charitable handouts but as investments 
that have a positive impact on the community.

Fondation Constance

Fondation Constance is the special entity responsible 
for the implementation of the Constance Group’s 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) programmes. It 
reports to the Corporate Governance Committee that 
approves its annual programme and budget and monitors 
its performance on a quarterly basis.

Share Option Plan

No such scheme exists at present within the Company.

Material Clauses of the Constitution

There are no clauses of the Company’s Constitution 
deemed material enough for special disclosure. 

A copy of the Company’s Constitution is available, 
upon request in writing to the Company Secretary at 
the registered office of the Company, 5th floor, Labama 
House, 35 Sir William Newton Street, Port Louis.

Timetable – Important Events

March Approval of audited accounts
May Approval of first-quarter results
June Annual Meeting of Shareholders
August Approval of second-quarter and 
 half-yearly results
November Approval of third-quarter  
 results
November/December Declaration of dividend
December Payment of dividend

CORPORATE VALUES AND CORPORATE 
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Corporate Values

The Group pursues the enhancement of corporate 
values through sound and ethical business practices. 
To fulfil this objective, it continually undertakes Group-
wide initiatives to strengthen its corporate governance 
structure; maintain sound employment practices – a 
healthy and safe workplace, with quality and job-related 
training; and protect and conserve the environment in 
which its member companies operate, with efficient 
resource management and utilisation; as well as play an 
active role in poverty eradication and the furtherance 
of a sustainable society through social-contribution 
programmes.

In recent years, the Group has more closely aligned its 
social and environmental responsibilities with its business 
strategy to reflect the Group’s vision and values in a 
relevant manner. Its ultimate objective in so doing is to 
fully integrate its values within its business practices, with 

Principles

The Constance Group has a policy on CSR, which is 
committed to the following set of principles:

• Conducting business in a socially responsible and ethical 
manner.

• Protecting the environment and the safety of people.

• Supporting human rights.

• Engaging in, respecting, supporting and learning from 
the communities and cultures within which it operates.

Whilst Fondation Constance extends its consideration 
to high-impact projects at national level, it tends to give 
priority to projects in the region in which its Group 
member companies operate.

Funding

The allocation of funds follows a specific donations policy 
that is meant to:

• Ensure that all its donations are compatible with its 
business activities and reflect its respective values and 
objectives.

• Support people and communities at both local and 
national level, with the aim of making their lives 
better and giving them opportunities that they might 
otherwise not have access to.

• Enhance and safeguard the natural environment. 

emphasis on the management of its economic, social and 
environmental obligations. These initiatives are driven by 
a responsible employee in each Group member company.  

Shareholders

The Company communicates with its shareholders 
through its Annual Report, publication of its quarterly 
results and other communiqués in the press, and face to 
face at its Annual Meeting.

Investees

The Company takes every step to ensure that the 
entities in which it invests maintain the highest standards 
of ethical and good governance. 

Codes of Ethics and Conduct

The Company is committed to a Code of Ethics and 
Conduct, which is outlined in its general Code of Ethics 
and Conduct as well as in its Code of Ethics and Conduct 
for Directors. These documents are comprehensive 
statements of the guiding principles of conduct, which 
the Company expects its Directors and employees to 
observe in discharging their responsibilities. These codes 
state the high moral, ethical and legal standards for 
which the Company stands and by which it professes 
to do its business. It states publicly to all the Company’s 
stakeholders the standards of behaviour they can expect 
from the Company’s Directors. 

Anti-money-laundering

It is the Company’s objective to make a positive 
contribution towards the combat against money 
laundering and terrorist financing by ensuring that its 
Management and employees adhere to the highest 
standards of anti-money-laundering compliance, in line 
with the Financial Intelligence and Anti-Money Laundering 
Act (2002) and subsequent regulations, to prevent the 
use of their products and services for money-laundering 
purposes. The Constance Group’s Anti-money-
laundering Policy and actions are coordinated by the 
Compliance function.

Health and Safety 

The Board of Directors is satisfied with the Management 
Company’s adherence to Health & Safety standards..

Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility Report
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 THE GROUP THE COMPANY
 2017 2016 2017 2016
 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000

Statutory - NCSR Foundation (through MRA) 51  - 51 -
Statutory - CSR to NGOs 70 70 60 44
Voluntary - Through Fondation Constance 639 710 639 706
Total 760 780 750 750
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CORPORATE VALUES AND CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

Corporate Values (continued)

Fondation Constance Fund Allocation

In 2017, the financial resources available to Fondation Constance were used to fund projects in Education & Training, 
Environment Protection, Socio-economic Development, Leisure & Sports and the Promotion of Culture. It supported 
12 NGOs, reaching a total of 270 direct beneficiaries.

Fund Allocation by Focus Area as at 31 December 2017

Education & Training

Constance Award For Education

The Group organised the 30th edition of the Constance Award for Education for School Certificate (SC) and Higher 
School Certificate (HSC) students from 25 colleges in the eastern region of Mauritius. The aim of this Award is 
to develop the human values, increase the general knowledge and foster the analytical and leadership skills of the 
participants so that they are better equipped to serve the community and prosper in their future working environments. 

In the context of this Award, the students had to conduct research on specific topics and present a report both in 
writing and orally to a panel of judges.

SC LEVEL

60 Participants 

12 Colleges

HSC LEVEL

60 Participants

13 Colleges

The Award covered the following topics:

 I. How could the Tourism Sector contribute to the sustainable development of 
Mauritius? 

 II. Mauritius has achieved a successful economic development, during the last thirty 
years, through a shift from an agricultural economy to a multi-sector one, which has 
contributed to a significant improvement in standard of living and quality of life. As 
young students, what is your vision of Mauritius in the next thirty years?

Non-Formal Education and Breakfast Support Programme for Children from Vulnerable Groups 

2 NGOs

85 Beneficiaries

4,615 Meals Served

Fondation Constance sponsored two NGOs dedicated to the development of quality non-
formal education programmes for children from vulnerable groups. 

This project benefitted 85 persons. 4,615 meals were served. 

Zippy’s Friends

Zippy’s Friends is a recognised international programme that helps young children, aged between five and seven years, 
to develop their ability to cope with everyday difficulties, to identify and talk about their feelings and to explore ways 
of dealing with them. It is an integrated project which aims at maintaining good mental health, which in turn impacts 
positively the academic performance of students and the long-term economic development of vulnerable people. 
In this connection, Fondation Constance elected to sponsor the Poste de Flacq RCA school. The programme was 
deployed during the year under review. Grade II teachers and Deputy Headmasters were trained in the first instance 
to be able to facilitate and implement the programme with the Grade II children throughout the year. A team from 
the Service Diocésain de l’Education Catholique (SeDEC) visits the school on a regular basis to provide the necessary 
support to ensure the effective implementation of the programme.

Socio-Economic Development 

Empowerment through Training and Placement 

11 Direct  
Beneficiaries

TWEF winner

Fondation Constance continued to sponsor training at the Constance Hospitality Training 
Centre (CHTC) to 11 persons from vulnerable groups of the eastern region of Mauritius 
with a view to developing their skills towards enhanced employability. Following their 
internship in the hotels of the Group, one participant has been employed by Constance 
Hotels whilst some are pursuing NC3 courses in the housekeeping techniques. 

In 2012, sponsored by Fondation Constance, one of the participants took advantage of the 
training in Housekeeping Techniques provided by CHTC. She was subsequently employed 
at Constance Prince Maurice. The Group is honoured that she was one of the two winners 
of the 2017 Tourism Employees Welfare Fund (TEWF) Housekeeping Competition.

1 Direct Beneficiary Fondation Constance sponsors youths who demonstrate a keen desire to uplift themselves 
and secure future employment through vocational training. One student of Collège Technique 
Saint Gabriel took advantage of the scheme and successfully completed his course. It is 
encouraging to note that many of the beneficiaries of this scheme have secured employment 
and are progressing in their career. 
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Corporate Values (continued)
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Nature of Business

The principal activity of the Company is to hold interest in other entities. A summary of the Company’s investment 
portfolio is given on page 7 of this Annual Report.

Service Contracts of Directors

Mr George J. Dumbell, Chairman of the Company, has a two-year service contract, which expires on 31st December 
2019. The other Directors do not have service contracts with the Company, but letters of appointment.

Remuneration and Benefits of Directors

The emoluments of Directors have not been disclosed individually because of the commercially sensitive nature of this 
data. Remuneration and benefits paid by the Company and its subsidiaries were as follows:

 2017 2016

 MUR’000 MUR ’000

Directors of Belle Mare Holding Ltd
Executive 80 160
Non-executive 830 755

Directors of subsidiary company
Executive - -
Non-executive - -

 910 915

Fees of Auditors

The fees paid to the auditors (exclusive of VAT) were:
 THE GROUP THE COMPANY
 2017 2016 2017 2016
 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000

Audit fees paid to:
BDO & Co. 258 250 258 250

Directors of Subsidiary

Société de Belle Mare:

 George J. Dumbell 
 Kevin Chan Too 
 Didier Langlois 
 Clément D. Rey 
 Jean Ribet

CORPORATE VALUES AND CORPORATE 
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

Corporate Values (continued)

Supporting Persons with Disabilities

In 2017, Fondation Constance supported NGOs 
promoting the social integration of persons with physical 
disabilities. Lizié dan Lamain was one of the beneficiaries. 

During the year under review, Constance Belle Mare 
Plage teamed up with MCB Group and supported 
Association des Parents de Déficients Auditifs (APDA). 
Fondation Constance had contributed towards the  
fund-raising activity with a view to providing hearing aids 
to children suffering from hearing deficiency. 

Schooling Support

During the year under review, Fondation Constance 
continued to sponsor Friends of the Poor with a view to 
providing support to ten children from vulnerable groups 
from the eastern region of Mauritius. 

Leisure & Sports

Fondation Constance encourages the promotion of 
recreational, leisure as well as sports activities in the 
eastern region of Mauritius. In 2017, Fondation Constance 
maintained its ongoing support to the sports activities 
carried out by the Faucon Flacq Sporting Club (FFSC) for 
the benefit of young people from underprivileged families. 
This collaboration has led to remarkable achievements, 
with the FFSC winning awards in various disciplines. 

2017 also saw the investment of Fondation Constance 
in its Cycling Academy. The Academy now counts 10 
teenagers of the following categories: 1 “Feminine”, 4 
“Minimes” and 4 “Cadets”. Fondation Constance is proud 
to report that they are performing very well.

Environment

In 2017, Fondation Constance supported the initiative 
Porlwi by Nature. With the view to raising awareness 
to environmental issues within the children of the 
eastern region of Mauritius, the Fondation facilitated the 
participation of some 75 of them to the sensitisation 
workshop that was held at “Le Moulin” in the context 
of this event. 

National CSR Foundation 

Further to the amendments brought to the National 
CSR Foundation - whereby companies are compelled to 
contribute 50% of their CSR monies to the National CSR 
Foundation, corporates have had to implement significant 
cuts to their long-term commitments and review their 
capacity to engage in new programmes. 

George J Dumbell Marie-Anne Adam, ACIS
Chairman For La Gaieté Services Ltd 
 Secretaries

Date: 29th March 2018

Other Statutory Disclosures
(pursuant to section 221 of the Companies Act 2001) 

Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility Report
(continued)
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In terms of section 166(d) of the Companies Act 2001, we certify that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the 
Company has filed with the Registrar of Companies all such returns as are required of the Company under the Act. 

Marie-Anne Adam, ACIS
For La Gaieté Services Limited
Secretaries

29th March 2018

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for:

(i) adequate accounting records and maintenance of effective internal control systems;

(ii) the preparation of financial statements which fairly present the state of affairs of the Company as at the end of the 
financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for that period and which comply with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS);

(iii) the selection of appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements.

The External Auditors are responsible for reporting on whether the financial statements are fairly presented.

The Directors report that:

(i) adequate accounting records and an effective system of internal controls and risk management have been 
maintained;

(ii) appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates have been used 
consistently;

(iii) International Financial Reporting Standards have been adhered to. Any departure in the interest of fair presentation 
has been disclosed, explained and quantified;

(iv) the Code of Corporate Governance has been adhered to in all material aspects and reasons provided for non-
compliance.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by:

George J. Dumbell Jean Ribet
Chairman Director 
 Group Chief Executive Officer

Date: 29th March 2018

Company Secretary’s Certificate Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
in respect of the preparation of financial statements
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Report on the audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTER AUDIT RESPONSE

1. Carrying value of investments in financial assets

The Group holds investment in financial assets with a carrying 
amount of MUR 2,545M at reporting date. The significance of 
the investment in financial assets on the statement of financial 
position resulted in it being identified as a key audit matter. 
The Group’s available-for-sale financial assets are held at fair 
value. The fair value of listed available-for-sale financial assets is 
based on the Official Market and the DEM quoted prices at the 
end of reporting period. In assessing the fair value of unquoted 
available-for-sale financial assets, the Group uses a variety of 
methods and makes assumptions that are based on market 
conditions existing at each reporting date. Many of the inputs 
required can be obtained from readily available liquid market 
prices and rates. Where observable market data is not available, 
estimates were developed based on the most appropriate 
source data and are subject to significant judgement.

Refer to note 8 of the accompanying financial statements.

-  We performed audit procedures over the recognition, 
measurement, reporting and disclosure of investments in 
financial assets held by the Group.

-     We tested the valuation at reporting date and we ascertained 
that the valuation techniques used are appropriate and 
consistent with prior years.

-   For unquoted available-for-sale financial assets, we tested 
that the valuation techniques adopted reflect the best 
appropriate measure to value the investments. We checked 
the reasonableness of inputs to the valuation techniques 
used.

-   For investments where the fair value is lower than costs 
and which may be impaired, we tested the financial health 
and near-term business outlook of the investee through 
discussion with management and available information on 
hand.

-   We ensured that the carrying value of the investments in 
financial assets is fairly stated.

KEY AUDIT MATTER AUDIT RESPONSE

2. Impairment of associates

The Group holds investment in associates with a carrying 
amount of MUR 978M at reporting date. In the separate financial 
statements, investments in associates are carried at cost. The 
carrying amount is reduced to recognise any impairment in the 
value of individual investments. In the consolidated statement 
of financial position, investments in associates are accounted 
for using the equity method. Goodwill arising on the acquisition 
of an associate is included with the carrying amount of the 
associate and tested annually for impairment. 

Refer to note 7 of the accompanying financial statements.

-   We reviewed and discussed with management and those 
charged with governance the Company’s assessment of 
whether there is objective evidence that the investment 
in associates is impaired and carried out appropriate 
impairment tests to ensure that the near-term business 
outlook of the investee seems reasonable.

Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in 
the Report of the Directors and Other Statutory Disclosures, but does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

This report is made solely to the members of Belle Mare Holding Limited (the “Company”), as a body, in accordance 
with Section 205 of the Companies Act 2001. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company 
and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Belle Mare Holding Limited and its subsidiary (the “Group”), 
and the Company’s separate financial statements on pages 33 to 58 which comprise the statements of financial position 
as at December 31, 2017, the statements of profit or loss, the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, the statements of changes in equity and the statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes 
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 33 to 58 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Group and of the Company as at December 31, 2017 and of their financial performance and their cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and comply with the Companies  
Act 2001. 

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics 
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Mauritius, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of  
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters. 

Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Shareholders (continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Shareholders
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Report on the audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter 
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 
of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Companies Act 2001

We have no relationship with, or interests in, the Company or its subsidiary, other than in our capacity as auditors, 
and dealings in the ordinary course of business. 

We have obtained all information and explanations we have required. 

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as it appears from our examination 
of those records.

Financial Reporting Act 2004

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Corporate Governance Report. Our responsibility is to report the 
extent of compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance as disclosed in the annual report and on whether the 
disclosure is consistent with the requirements of the Code.

In our opinion, the disclosure in the annual report is consistent with the requirements of the Code.

BDO & CO
Chartered Accountants

Ameenah Ramdin FCCA, ACA 
Licensed by FRC 

Port Louis 
Mauritius 

29th March 2018

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2001, and 
for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the financial statements, the 
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors 
either intend to liquidate the Group and the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but  
to do so. Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group and the Company’s financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Group and the Company’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by Directors. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Group and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Group and the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities 
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the 
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Shareholders (continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Shareholders (continued)
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Financial Statements

Statements of Financial Position
December 31, 2017

 THE GROUP THE COMPANY
 Notes 2017 2016 2017 2016
  MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000

Assets Employed
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 205,529 160,522 - - 
Investments in subsidiary 6 - - 5,461 5,461 
Investments in associates 7 978,206 787,614 604,106 604,106 
Investments in financial assets 8 2,545,405 1,829,708 2,545,405 1,829,708 

  3,729,140 2,777,844 3,154,972 2,439,275 

Current assets
Trade and other receivables 9 5,707 40,832 5,436 40,388 
Cash and cash equivalents 20(c) 346 152 - - 

  6,053 40,984 5,436 40,388 

Total assets  3,735,193 2,818,828 3,160,408 2,479,663 

Equity and Liabilities
Capital and reserves (attributable to
owners of the parent company)
Stated capital 10 446,739 446,739 446,739 446,739 
Revaluation and other reserves  1,711,885 788,385 1,277,268 588,904 
Retained earnings  1,546,012 1,553,434 1,405,856 1,413,763 

Owners’ interests  3,704,636 2,788,558 3,129,863 2,449,406 

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 12 2,968 11,449 2,956 11,436 
Current tax liabilities 13(b) 240 235 240 235 
Borrowings 14 & 20(c) 27,349 18,586 27,349 18,586 

  30,557 30,270 30,545 30,257 

Total equity and liabilities  3,735,193 2,818,828 3,160,408 2,479,663 

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of directors on 29th March 2018.

George J. Dumbell Jean Ribet
Chairman Director
 Group Chief Executive Officer

The notes on pages 38 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Auditor’s report on pages 28 to 31.

CONTENTS
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Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 
Year ended December 31, 2017

Statements of Profit or Loss
Year ended December 31, 2017

 THE GROUP THE COMPANY
 Notes 2017 2016 2017 2016
  MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000

Profit for the year  40,935 939,156 40,450 951,337 

Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Gain on revaluation of freehold land 5 45,030 - - - 
Share of other comprehensive
income of associates 7(b) 205,252 (6,032) - - 

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Increase in fair value
of available for sale investments 8 & 11 688,364 237,138 688,364 237,138
Release on derecognition/disposal
of investments in financial assets 8 & 11 - (801,999) - (801,999)
Share of other comprehensive
income of associates 7(b) (15,146) (3,537) - - 

Other comprehensive income  
for the year  923,500 (574,430) 688,364 (564,861)

Total comprehensive income  
for the year  964,435 364,726 728,814 386,476 

Total comprehensive income  
attributable to:
Owners of the parent  964,435 364,726 728,814 386,476

The notes on pages 38 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Auditor’s report on pages 28 to 31.

 THE GROUP THE COMPANY
 Notes 2017 2016 2017 2016
  MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000

Revenue 2(g) 55,583 38,023 59,033 48,209 

Operating profit 16 36,980 21,204 41,518 32,477 
Finance costs 17 (475) (72) (475) (72)
Share of result of associates 7 5,023 (908) - - 

  41,528 20,224 41,043 32,405 
Net gain on derecognition of
financial asset 18 - 866,442 - 866,442 
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investment  - 67,265 - 67,265 
Impairment losses 7 - (14,294) - (14,294)

Profit before taxation  41,528 939,637 41,043 951,818 
Taxation 13(a) (593) (481) (593) (481)

Profit for the year  40,935 939,156 40,450 951,337 

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent  40,935 939,156 40,450 951,337 

Earnings per share (MUR) 19 0.68 15.54 0.67 15.74 

Earnings per share excluding gain on  
derecognition and impairment (MUR) 19 0.68 1.44 0.67 1.64 

The notes on pages 38 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Auditor’s report on pages 28 to 31.
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Statements of Cash Flows
Year ended December 31, 2017

Statements of Changes in Equity
Year ended December 31, 2017

 THE GROUP THE COMPANY
 Note 2017 2016 2017 2016
  MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000

Operating activities
Cash generated from operations 20(a) 34,059 39,565 33,865 39,755 
Interest received  125 3,684 125 3,684 
Interest paid  (475) (72) (475) (72)
Tax paid  (588) (282) (588) (282)

Net cash generated from  
operating activities  33,121 42,895 32,927 43,085 

Investing activities
Acquisition of associate  - (3,565) - (3,565)
Purchase of investment in
financial assets  (27,333) (35,039) (27,333) (35,039)
Disposals of investments in
financial assets  - 69,560 - 69,560 

Net cash (used in)/generated  
from investing activities  (27,333) 30,956 (27,333) 30,956 

Financing activity
Dividends paid to company’s shareholders  (48,357) (48,357) (48,357) (48,357)

Net cash used in financing activity  (48,357) (48,357) (48,357) (48,357)

(Decrease)/increase in cash and  
cash equivalents  (42,569) 25,494 (42,763) 25,684 

Movement in cash and  
cash equivalents
At January 1,  15,566 (9,928) 15,414 (10,270)
(Decrease)/increase  (42,569) 25,494 (42,763) 25,684 

At December 31, 20(c) (27,003) 15,566 (27,349) 15,414

The notes on pages 38 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Auditor’s report on pages 28 to 31.

    Revaluation Fair
   Stated and other value Retained
  Notes Capital reserves reserves earnings Total
   MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000

(a) THE GROUP
 Balance at January 1, 2017  446,739 219,074 569,311 1,553,434 2,788,558 
 Profit for the year  - - - 40,935 40,935 
 Other comprehensive income for the year 11 - 235,136 688,364 - 923,500 
 Dividend 15 - - - (48,357) (48,357)

 Balance at December 31, 2017  446,739 454,210 1,257,675 1,546,012 3,704,636 

 Balance at January 1, 2016  446,739 228,643 1,134,172 662,635 2,472,189 
 Profit for the year  - - - 939,156 939,156 
 Other comprehensive income for the year 11 - (9,569) (564,861) - (574,430)
 Dividend 15 - - - (48,357) (48,357)

 Balance at December 31, 2016  446,739 219,074 569,311 1,553,434 2,788,558

  Attributable to the owners of the parent

    Revaluation Fair
   Stated and other value Retained
  Notes capital reserves reserves earnings Total
   MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000

(b) THE COMPANY
 Balance at January 1, 2017  446,739 19,593 569,311 1,413,763 2,449,406 
 Profit for the year  - - - 40,450 40,450 
 Other comprehensive income for the year 11 - - 688,364 - 688,364 
 Dividend 15 - - - (48,357) (48,357)

 Balance at December 31, 2017  446,739 19,593 1,257,675 1,405,856 3,129,863 

 Balance at January 1, 2016  446,739 19,593 1,134,172 510,783 2,111,287 
 Profit for the year  - - - 951,337 951,337 
 Other comprehensive income for the year 11 - - (564,861) - (564,861)
 Dividend 15 - - - (48,357) (48,357)

 Balance at December 31, 2016  446,739 19,593 569,311 1,413,763 2,449,406

The notes on pages 38 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Auditor’s report on pages 28 to 31.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2017
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. 
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, or areas where assumptions are 
significant to the financial statements are described 
in note 4.

 IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments” – effective 
01 January 2018

 IFRS 9 is of particular importance to the Group. 
In July 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 9, “Financial 
Instruments”, which is the comprehensive 
standard to replace IAS 39, “Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement”, and includes 
requirements for classification and measurement 
of financial assets and liabilities, impairment of 
financial assets and hedge accounting.

 Transition

 The classification and measurement and impairment 
requirements are applied retrospectively by 
adjusting the opening balance sheet at the date of 
initial application, with no requirement to restate 
comparative periods.

 IFRS 9 is applicable on the Group as from January 1, 
2018. The impact will be mainly on the classification 
and measurement of the financial assets.

 The classification and measurement of financial 
assets will depend on how these are managed 
(the entity’s business model) and their contractual 
cash flow characteristics. These factors determine 
whether the financial assets are measured 
at amortised cost, fair value through other 
comprehensive income (‘FVOCI’) or fair value 
through profit or loss (‘FVPL’). In many instances, 
the classification and measurement outcomes will 
be similar to IAS 39, although differences will arise. 

(b) Investments in subsidiaries

 Separate financial statements of the Company

 Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost. 
The carrying amount is reduced to recognise any 
impairment in the value of individual investments.

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

 Standards, Amendments to Published 
Standards and Interpretations issued but not 
yet effective (continued)
-  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an 

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture 
(Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)

- IFRS 16, “Leases”
- Clarifications to IFRS 15, “Revenue from 

Contracts with Customers”
- Classification and Measurement of Share-based 

Payment Transactions (Amendments to IFRS 2)
- Applying IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments with 

IFRS 4, “Insurance Contracts (Amendments to 
IFRS 4)”

- Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014–2016 
Cycle

- IFRIC 22, “Foreign Currency Transactions and 
Advance Consideration”

- Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments 
to IAS 40)

- IFRS 17, “Insurance Contracts”
- IFRIC 23, “Uncertainty over Income Tax 

Treatments”
-  “Prepayment Features with negative compen-

sation (Amendments to IFRS 9)”
-  Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint 

Ventures (Amendments to IAS 28)
-  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015–2017 

Cycle

 Where relevant, the Group is still evaluating 
the effect of these Standards, Amendments to 
Published Standards and Interpretations issued but 
not yet effective, on the presentation of its financial 
statements.

 The preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain 
critical accounting estimates. It also requires 
the Directors to exercise their judgement in the 

that investments in financial assets are stated at fair 
value and freehold land at revalued amount.

 Amendments to Published Standards effective 
in the reporting period

 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised 
Losses (Amendments to IAS 12). The amendments 
clarify the accounting for deferred tax where an 
asset is measured at fair value and that fair value is 
below the asset’s tax base. The amendment has no 
impact on the Group’s financial statements. 

 Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 7). The 
amendments require the entity to explain changes 
in its liabilities arising from financing activities. 
This includes changes arising from cash flows (eg 
drawdowns and repayments of borrowings) and 
non-cash changes such as acquisitions, disposals, 
accretion of interest and unrealised exchange 
differences. The Group does not have financial 
liabilities arising from financing activities. 

 Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014–2016 
Cycle

 IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities. 
The amendments clarify that entities are not 
exempt from all of the disclosure requirements 
in IFRS 12 when entities have been classified as 
held for sale or as discontinued operations. The 
amendment has no impact on the Group’s financial 
statements.

 Standards, Amendments to Published 
Standards and Interpretations issued but not 
yet effective

 Certain standards, amendments to published 
standards and interpretations have been issued that 
are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2018 or later periods, but which 
the Group has not early adopted.

 At the reporting date of these financial statements, 
the following were in issue but not yet effective:
-  IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”
-  IFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with 

Customers”

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

 Belle Mare Holding Limited is a limited liability 
company incorporated and domiciled in Mauritius. 
The address of its registered office is 5th Floor, 
Labama House, 35 Sir William Newton Street, 
Port-Louis. 

 These financial statements will be submitted for 
consideration and approval at the forthcoming 
Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Company.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES

 The principal accounting policies adopted in the 
preparation of these financial statements are set 
out below. These policies have been consistently 
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise 
stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

 The financial statements of Belle Mare Holding 
Limited comply with the Companies Act 2001 
and have been prepared in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

 The financial statements include the consolidated 
financial statements of the parent company and its 
subsidiary company (The Group) and the separate 
financial statements of the parent company (The 
Company). The financial statements are presented 
in Mauritian Rupees and all values are rounded to 
the nearest thousand (MUR 000), except when 
otherwise indicated.

 The Group and the Company have a net current 
liability of MUR 24.5M and MUR 25M respectively 
at December 31, 2017. The Board is satisfied that 
the Group and the Company have the resources 
to meet their liabilities in the foreseeable future.  
The financial statements are prepared on going 
concern basis.

 Where necessary, comparative figures have been 
amended to conform with change in presentation 
in the current year. The financial statements are 
prepared under historical cost convention, except 
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 Increases in the carrying amount arising on 
revaluation are credited to revaluation and other 
reserves in shareholders’ equity. Decrease that 
offset previous increases of the same asset are 
charged against the revaluation reserve, all other 
decreases are charged to profit or loss.

 Depreciation is calculated on the straight line 
method to write off the cost of assets to their 
residual values over their estimated useful lives. The 
principal annual rates used are as follows:

 Buildings on freehold land 2%
 Furniture and equipment 10%
 Fencing and structures 15%

 The assets’ residual values and useful lives are 
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of 
each reporting period.

 Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater 
than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written 
down immediately to its recoverable amount.

 Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant 
and equipment are determined by reference to 
their carrying amount and are included in profit or 
loss. On disposal of revalued assets, the amount 
in revaluation surplus are transferred to retained 
earnings.

(e) Financial instruments

 The Group’s accounting policies in respect of the 
main financial instruments are set out below.

(i) Trade receivables

 Trade receivables are stated at their nominal 
value as reduced by appropriate allowances for 
doubtful receivables.

 Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair 
value and subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective method, less provision 
for impairment. A provision for impairment of 
trade receivables is established when there is 
objective evidence that the Company will not 
be able to collect all amounts due according to 
the original terms of receivables. 

(c) Investments in associates (continued)

 Consolidated financial statements (continued)

 Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair 
value of identifiable assets and liabilities over the 
cost of acquisition, after assessment, is included as 
income in the determination of the Group’s share 
of the associate’s profit or loss. When the Group’s 
share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, 
the Group discontinues recognising further losses, 
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligation 
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

 Unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the 
extent of the Group’s interest in the associate. 
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the 
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of 
the asset transferred.

 Where necessary, appropriate adjustments are 
made to the financial statements of associates to 
bring the accounting policies used in line with those 
adopted by the Group. 

 If the ownership interest in an associate is 
reduced but significant influence is retained, only 
a proportionate share of the amounts previously 
recognised in other comprehensive income are 
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate. 
Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in 
associates are recognised in profit or loss.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

 Property, plant and equipment (except for freehold 
land) are stated at historical cost/deemed cost 
less accumulated depreciation and impairment. 
Freehold land is stated at revalued amounts 
and is not depreciated. Historical cost includes 
expenditure that is directly attributable to the 
acquisition of the items.

 Subsequent costs are included in the assets’ 
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset 
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will 
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably.

consistency with the policies adopted by the 
Group.

 Disposal of subsidiaries

 When the Group ceases to have control, any 
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to 
its fair value, with the change in carrying amount 
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is 
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of 
subsequently accounting for the retained interest 
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. 
In addition, any amount previously recognised in 
other comprehensive income in respect of that 
entity are accounted for as if the Group had 
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. 
This may mean that amounts previously recognised 
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to 
profit or loss. 

(c) Investments in associates

 Separate financial statements of the Company

 In the separate financial statements of the investor, 
investments in associated companies are carried at 
cost. 

 The carrying amount is reduced to recognise any 
impairment in the value of individual investments.

 Consolidated financial statements

 An associate is an entity over which the Group 
has significant influence, but not control, or joint 
control, generally accompanying a shareholding 
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. 
Investments in associates are accounted for using 
the equity method except when classified as held-
for-sale. 

 Investments in associates are initially recognised at 
cost as adjusted by post acquisition changes in the 
Group’s share of the net assets of the associate 
less any impairment in the value of individual 
investments. Any excess of the cost of acquisition 
and the Group’s share of the net fair value of 
the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities 
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised 
as goodwill, which is included in the carrying 
amount of the investment. 

(b) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

 Consolidated financial statements

 Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured 
entities) over which the Group has control. The 
Group controls an entity when the Group is 
exposed to, or has rights to variable returns 
from its involvement with the entity and has the 
ability to affect those returns through its power 
over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated 
from the date on which control is transferred to 
the Group. They are de-consolidated from the 
date that control ceases. The acquisition method 
of accounting is used to account for business 
combinations by the Group. The consideration 
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the 
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities 
incurred and the equity interests issued by the 
Group. The consideration transferred includes the 
fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a 
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable 
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent 
liabilities assumed in a business combination 
are measured initially at their fair values at the 
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition 
basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling 
interests in the acquiree either at fair value or at 
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share 
of the acquiree’s net assets.

 The excess of the consideration transferred, the 
amount of any non-controlling interests in the 
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of 
any previous equity interest in the acquiree (if 
any) over the fair value of the Group’s share of 
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded 
as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of 
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the  
case of a bargain purchase, the difference is 
recognised directly in the profit or loss as a bargain 
purchase gain.

 Inter-company transactions, balances and 
unrealised gains on transactions between group 
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are 
also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries 
have been changed where necessary to ensure 



4342 BELLE MARE HOLDING LIMITED |  ANNUAL REPORT 2017BELLE MARE HOLDING LIMITED |  ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2017

CONTENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

proceeds. Mandatorily redeemable preference 
shares are classified as liabilities. Where any 
group Company purchases its equity share 
capital (treasury shares), the consideration 
paid, including any directly attributable 
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is 
deducted from equity attributable to the 
Company’s equity holders until the shares are 
cancelled or reissued. When such shares are 
subsequently reissued, any net consideration 
received, is included in equity attributable to 
the Company’s equity holders. 

(f) Current tax

 The tax expense for the year comprises current 
tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to 
the extent that it relates to items recognised in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. 

 Current tax

 The current income tax charge is based on taxable 
income for the year calculated on the basis of the 
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted by the 
end of the reporting period.

(g) Revenue

 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable, and includes 
investment income, interest income and invoiced 
values of all sales of goods and services, net of 
discounts, VAT, allowances and excludes sales 
between group companies. 

 Investment income is recognised when the 
shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

 Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion 
basis using the effective interest method.

 When a receivable is impaired, the Company 
reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable 
amount being the estimated future cash flow 
discounted at original effective interest rate, and 
continues unwinding the discount as interest 
income. Interest income on impaired loans is 
recognised either as cash is collected or on a cost-
recovery basis as conditions warrant. 

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii) Investments in financial assets 
(continued)

 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

 Impairment losses recognised in the profit or 
loss for an investment in an equity instrument 
classified as available-for-sale are not reversed 
through the profit or loss.

 Impairment of non-financial assets 

 The carrying amount of non-financials 
assets is assessed at each reporting date to 
determine whether there are any indications 
of impairment. If any such indication exists, 
the Group estimates the recoverable amount 
of the asset being the higher of the asset’s 
fair value less costs to sell and its value in 
use, in order to determine the extent of the 
impairment loss (if any). An impairment loss 
is recognised for any excess of the assets’s 
carrying amount over its recoverable amount 
and is taken directly to profit or loss. 

(iii) Trade payables

 Trade and other payables are initially 
recognised at fair value and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using effective 
interest method. 

(iv) Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents include cash in 
hand, deposits held at call with banks, other 
short-term highly liquid investments with 
original maturities of 3 months or less, and 
bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown 
within borrowings in current liabilities on the 
statement of financial position.

(v) Stated capital

 Ordinary shares

 Ordinary shares are classified as equity. 
Incremental costs directly attributable to the 
issue of new shares or options are shown 
in equity as deduction, net of tax, from 

 Unrealised gains and losses arising from 
changes in the fair value of financial assets 
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in 
other comprehensive income. 

 When financial assets classified as available-
for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated 
fair value adjustments are included in profit or 
loss as gains and losses on financial assets.

 The fair values of quoted investments are 
based on current bid prices. If the market 
for a financial asset is not active (and for 
unlisted securities), the Company establishes 
fair value by using valuation techniques. These 
include the use of recent similar transactions, 
reference to other instruments that are 
substantially the same, discounted cash flows 
analysis, and option pricing models refined to 
reflect the issuer’s specific circumstances.

 Impairment of financial assets

 The Group assesses at the end of each 
reporting period whether there is objective 
evidence that a financial asset or a group 
of financial assets is impaired. In the case of 
equity investments classified as available-
for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in 
the fair value of the security below its cost 
is considered in determining whether the 
securities are impaired. If any such evidence 
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the 
cumulative loss, measured as the difference 
between acquisition cost and the current fair 
value, less any impairment loss on that financial 
asset previously recognised in profit or loss is 
removed from equity and recognised in profit 
or loss.

 If the fair value of a previously impaired debt 
security classified as available-for-sale increases 
and the increase can be objectively related 
to an event occurring after the impairment 
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is 
reversed and the reversal recognised in profit 
or loss.

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

(i) Trade receivables (continued)

 The amount of the provision is the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows, 
discounted at the effective interest rate. The 
amount of provision is recognised in profit or 
loss.

(ii) Investments in financial assets

 Investments are recognised on a trade-date 
basis and are initially measured at cost.

 Available-for-sale financial assets

 Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this 
category or not classified in any of the other 
categories. They are included in non-current 
assets unless management intends to dispose 
of the investment within twelve months of the 
end of the reporting period.

 Recognition and measurement

 Purchases and sales of financial assets are 
recognised on trade-date, the date on which 
the Group commits to purchase or sell the 
asset. Investments are initially measured at fair 
value plus transaction costs for all financial 
assets except those that are carried at fair 
value through profit or loss. 

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss are initially recognised at fair value, and 
transaction costs are expensed.

 Available-for-sale financial assets and financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss are 
subsequently carried at their fair values. 

 Investments in equity instruments that do 
not have a quoted market price in an active 
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably 
measured are carried at cost.

 Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising 
from changes in the fair value of the financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss 
category are included in profit or loss in the 
period in which they arise. 
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 Interest rate risk

 The Group’s borrowings as shown in the financial 
statements are exposed to interest rate risks as it 
borrows at variable rates. The Group’s debt level is 
low and the impact of any change in interest rate is 
insignificant.

 Capital Risk Management

 The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

• to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, so that it can continue to 
provide returns for shareholders and

• to provide an adequate return to share-
holders by pricing products and services 
commensurately with the level of risk.

 The debt level of the Group comprises only of 
bank overdraft.

 Fair value estimation

 The fair value of financial instruments traded in 
active markets is based on quoted market prices 
at the end of the reporting period. A market is 
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and 
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, 

 Credit risk

 The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to 
its receivables. The risks relating to this item are 
not material owing to the nature of the receivables.

 The maximum exposure to credit risk is the fair 
value of receivables. The Group does not hold any 
collateral as security.

 Liquidity risk

 In order to ensure the adequacy of its funding 
requirements, cash flow forecasts are regularly 
prepared and if required, relevant credit facilities 
are sought.

 Prudent liquidity risk management includes 
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, 
the availability of funding from an adequate amount 
of credit facilities and the ability to close out 
market positions. The Group aims at maintaining 
flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit 
lines available. 

 In order to ensure the adequacy of its funding 
requirements, cash flow forecasts are regularly 
prepared and the relevant credit facilities are 
closely monitored.

(j) Derecognition of financial assets and 
liabilities

 The Company derecognises a financial asset when 
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive 
the contractual cash flows on the financial asset 
in a transaction in which substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are 
transferred. 

(k) Dividend distribution

 Dividend distribution to the Company’s share-
holders is recognised as a liability in the Company’s 
financial statements in the year in which the 
distribution is authorised by the board.

3 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

 The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of 
financial risks. The Board provides guidelines for 
overall risk management and seeks to minimise 
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial 
performance.

 Market/Price risk

 The Group is exposed to equity securities price 
risk due to investments held by the Group and 
are classified as available-for-sale. To manage the 
price risk arising from the investments in equity 
securities, the Group diversifies its portfolio. 

(h) Provisions

 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a 
present or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events; it is probable that an outflow of economic 
benefits that can be reasonably estimated will be 
required to settle the obligation. 

 The amount recognised as a provision is the best 
estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, 
taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is 
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle 
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the 
present value of those cash flows (when the effect 
of the time value of money is material).

(i) Foreign currencies

 Functional and presentation currency

 Items included in the financial statements of 
each of the Group’s entities are measured using 
Mauritian Rupees, the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the entity 
operates (“functional currency”). The consolidated 
financial statements are presented in Mauritian 
Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and 
presentation currency.

 Non-monetary items that are measured at 
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated 
using the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

 Non-monetary items that are measured at fair 
value in a foreign currency are translated using 
the exchange rates at the date the fair value was 
determined.

 Translation differences on non-monetary items, 
such as equities held at fair value through profit 
or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain 
or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary 
items, such as equities classified as available-for-
sale financial assets, are included in the fair value 
reserve in equity.

 Market/Price risk (continued)

 Sensitivity analysis

 The table below summarises the impact of increases/decreases in the fair value of the equity securities on the 
Group’s/Company’s equity. The analysis is based on the assumption that the fair value had increased/decreased 
by 5%.

 THE GROUP AND  
 THE COMPANY
 Impact on equity
 2017 2016

Categories of investments: MUR’000 MUR’000
  +/- +/-

 Available-for-sale
 Listed:
 - Official market 94,339 64,849 
 - DEM 3,167 2,455 
 Unquoted 29,116 24,182 

  126,622 91,486 
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THE GROUP
    Buildings Furniture Fencing
   Freehold on freehold and and
  Note land land equipment structures Total
   MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000

 2017
 Cost or Valuation
 At January 1, 2017  159,910 1,212 86 100 161,308
 Revaluation surplus 11(a) 45,030 - - - 45,030

 At December 31, 2017  204,940 1,212 86 100 206,338 
 
 Depreciation
 At January 1, 2017  - 600 86 100 786 
 Charge for the year  - 23 - - 23 

 At December 31, 2017  - 623 86 100 809 

 Net Book Values
 At December 31, 2017  204,940 589 - - 205,529 

 2016
 Cost or Valuation
 At January 1, 2016 &  

December 31, 2016  159,910 1,212 86 100 161,308 

 Depreciation
 At January 1, 2016  - 577 86 100 763 
 Charge for the year  - 23 - - 23 

 At December 31, 2016  - 600 86 100 786 

 Net Book Values
 At December 31, 2016  159,910 612 - - 160,522 

 Freehold land was revalued in February 2018 by International Valuers Ltd (Mr. Noor Dilmohamed - Certified 
Practising Valuer) on the basis of open maket value approach. The valuation considerations take into account the 
location of the site and the specific characteristics attached thereto. If freehold land was stated at historical cost, 
the amount would be MUR 217,000 (2016: MUR 217,000). The freehold land is classified as level 2 in term of the 
fair value hierarchy.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and 
assumptions

 The Group makes estimates and assumptions 
concerning the future. The resulting accounting 
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal 
the related actual results. The estimates and 
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing 
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities within the next financial year 
are discussed below.

 Impairment of available-for-sale financial 
assets

 The Group follows the guidance of IAS 39 in 
determining when an investment is other-than-
temporarily impaired. This determination requires 
significant judgement. In making this judgement, 
the Group evaluates, among other factors, the 
duration and extent to which the fair value of an 
investment is less than its cost, and the financial 
health of and near-term business outlook for the 
investee, including factors such as industry and 
sector performance, changes in technology and 
operational and financing cash flow.

 Fair value of securities not quoted in an 
active market

 The fair value of securities not quoted in an 
active market may be determined by the Group 
using valuation techniques including third party 
transaction values, earnings, net asset value or 
discounted cash flows, whichever is considered 
to be appropriate. The Group would exercise 
judgement and estimates on the quantity and 
quality of pricing sources used. Changes in 
assumptions about these factors could affect the 
reported fair value of financial instruments. Certain 
securities which do not have a quoted price are 
stated at cost less impairment as their fair value 
cannot be reliably measured as there is no active 
market and an absence of track records for such 
or similar instruments. These investments are not 
material to the Company.

Fair value estimation (continued)

  industry group, pricing service, or regulatory 
agency, and those prices represent actual and 
regularly occurring market transactions in the 
normal course of business. The quoted market 
price used for financial assets held by the Company 
is the current bid price. These instruments are 
included in level 1. Instruments included in level 
1 comprise primarily quoted equity investments 
classified as trading securities or available-for-sale.

 The fair value of financial instruments that are not 
traded in an active market is determined by using 
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques 
maximise the use of observable market data where 
it is available and rely as little as possible on specific 
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair 
value an instrument are observable, the instrument 
is included in level 2. 

 If one or more of the significant inputs is not based 
on observable market data, the instrument is 
included in level 3. 

 Specific valuation techniques used to value financial 
instruments include:

- Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for 
similar instruments.

- Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow 
analysis, dividend yield and earnings basis, are 
used to determine fair value for the remaining 
financial instruments.

 The nominal value less estimated credit 
adjustments of trade receivables and payables are 
assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair 
value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes 
is estimated by discounting the future contractual 
cash flows at the current market interest rate 
that is available to the Group for similar financial 
instruments.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 
AND JUDGEMENTS

 Estimates and judgements are continuously 
evaluated and are based on historical experience 
and other factors, including expectations of future 
events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances.
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7 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(c) The results of the following associates that have been included in the consolidated financial statements were as follows:
     Proportion of
   Nature of Country of Country of ownership interest
 Name Year end business incorporation operation Direct Indirect
      % %

 2017 & 2016
 Coroi Maurice Ltée December 31, Trade Mauritius Mauritius 50.00 -
 Scetia Holding Ltd June 30, Trade Mauritius Mauritius 40.00 -
 Business Boosters  

Investment Ltd September 30, Trade Mauritius Mauritius 35.00 -
 Cool Investment Ltd September 30, Trade Mauritius Mauritius 19.00 17.85
 ECS Global Ltd December 31, Trade Mauritius Mauritius 49.00 -
   Investment  

BBI Properties Ltd September 30, Property Mauritius Mauritius 35.00 -
 Hotelest Limited December 31, Investment Mauritius Mauritius 30.12 -

(i) All the above associates are accounted for using the equity method.

(ii) For associates having a different year end, management accounts have been prepared as at December 31, 2017.

(iii) Summarised financial information in respect of each of the material associates is set out below:

         Other Dividend
   Non-  Non- Non-  Profit/ compre- received
  Current current Current current controlling  (loss) for hensive during
  assets assets liabilities liabilities interest Revenue the year income the year
 Name MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000

 2017
 Coroi Maurice Ltée 171,096 41,297 66,116 9,772 - 261,769 5,935 898 1,000
 Hotelest Limited 1,486,337 10,689,713 2,249,128 4,162,992 2,857,485 3,766,189 26,199 629,668 3,537

 2016
 Coroi Maurice Ltée 176,994 43,118 76,319 12,121 - 285,117 6,331 (1,876) 1,000
 Hotelest Limited 1,312,657 9,517,424 1,971,773 4,386,212 2,209,773 3,632,590 (9,197) (28,653) 10,274

6 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY

(a) THE COMPANY
  2017 2016
  MUR’000 MUR’000

 Cost
 At January 1, and December 31, 5,461 5,461 

(b) Details about the subsidiary, where it is incorporated in Mauritius, is as follows:
   Stated % Shareholding
   capital by The Company

   MUR’000
 Name Year end Activity Description 2017 & 2016 2017 2016

 Société de   Property Share of 
Belle Mare December 31, 2017 holding interest 1,412 100% 100%

7 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

(a) THE COMPANY
  2017 2016
  MUR’000 MUR’000

 Unquoted
 Cost
 At January 1, 604,106 614,835
 Additions - 3,565 
 Impairment loss - (14,294)

 At December 31, 604,106 604,106 

(b) THE GROUP
  2017 2016
  MUR’000 MUR’000

 At January 1, 787,614 820,094 
 Additions - 3,565 
 Movement in reserves (note 11(a)) 190,106 (9,569)
 Share of results of associates 5,023 (908)
 Dividends from associates (4,537) (11,274)
 Impairment loss - (14,294)

 At December 31, 978,206 787,614
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8 INVESTMENTS IN FINANCIAL ASSETS

 Available-for-sale financial assets

  THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

  2017 2016

  Listed  Unquoted 

  Level 1  Level 3
  Official DEM
  Market   Total Total
  MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000

(a) Cost and Valuation
 At January 1, 1,296,972 49,096 483,640 1,829,708 1,418,919 
 Additions - 82 27,251 27,333 997,267 
 Disposals - - - - (88,882)
 Increase in fair value (note 11(a)) 589,805 14,157 84,402 688,364 237,138 
 Reclassification adjustments for gains  

included in profit or loss (note 11(a)) - - - - (734,734)

 At December 31, 1,886,777 63,335 595,293 2,545,405 1,829,708 

(b) The fair value of listed available-for-sale financial assets is based on the Official Market and the DEM quoted 
prices at the end of reporting period. In assessing the fair value of unquoted available-for-sale financial assets, the 
Group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each 
reporting date. The fair value of unquoted available-for-sale financial assets is based on earnings, dividend yield, 
net asset basis, latest indicative exchange prices and price to book as appropriate.

9 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
 THE GROUP THE COMPANY
 2017 2016 2017 2016
 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000

 Receivable from subsidiary - - 420 477 
 Receivable from associates 4,537 3,190 4,537 3,190 
 Receivable from related parties 467 2,693 195 2,273 
 Loan receivable at call - 34,000 - 34,000 
 Other receivables 14,203 10,949 13,784 10,448 
 Less provision for impairment (13,500) (10,000) (13,500) (10,000)

  5,707 40,832 5,436 40,388 

 The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate their fair values. The maximum exposure to 
credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable. The Group does not hold any collat-
eral as security.

7 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(iv) Reconciliation of summarised financial information

 Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount recognised in the financial 
statements:

    Other
    compre-
   Results hensive
  Opening net of income for Closing Ownership Interest in
  net assets dividends the year net assets interests associates
 Name MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 % MUR’000

 2017
 Coroi Maurice Ltée 131,672 4,935 898 137,505 50.00 68,253
 Hotelest Limited 2,262,322 14,455 629,668 2,906,445 30.12 875,421

 2016
 Coroi Maurice Ltée 129,217 4,331 (1,876) 131,672 50.00 65,836
 Hotelest Limited 2,334,286 (41,460) (30,504) 2,262,322 30.12 681,411

(v) Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material
  2017 2016
  MUR’000 MUR’000

 Carrying amount of interests 34,532 40,367

 Share of loss (5,835) (1,304)
 Share of other comprehensive income - -

 Share of total comprehensive income (5,835) (1,304)

(d) As at December 31, 2017, the fair value of the Group’s interest in Hotelest limited which is listed on the Stock 
Exchange of Mauritius was MUR 518 million (2016: MUR 522 million) based on fee quoted market price available, 
which is a level 1 input in terms of IFRS 13.

(e) Impairment loss representing the amount by which the carrying value of the investment and the corresponding 
goodwill in respect of the associates is impaired at the level of the Company and the Group amounted to Nil 
(2016: MUR 14 million).
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11 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

  Fair value reserves
  MUR’000

(b) THE COMPANY
 2017
 Fair value changes in available for sale financial assets (note 8(a)) 688,364 

 Other comprehensive income for the year 688,364 

 2016
 Fair value changes in available for sale financial assets (note 8(a)) 237,138 
 Reclassification adjustment on derecognition/ 

disposal of available for sale financial asset (note 8) (801,999)

 Other comprehensive income for the year (564,861)

 Revaluation reserve

 The revaluation arises on the revaluation of freehold land.

 Fair value reserve

 The fair value reserve, which comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial 
assets that has been recognised in other comprehensive income until the investments are derecognised or 
impaired.

 Associates reserve

 The associates reserve comprises of the Group’s share of movement in the reserves of associated companies.

12 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

 THE GROUP THE COMPANY
 2017 2016 2017 2016
 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000

 Amount due to related parties 925 9,307 925 9,307 
 Other payables 2,043 2,142 2,031 2,129 

  2,968 11,449 2,956 11,436 

 The carrying amounts of other payables approximate their fair values.

9 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

 THE GROUP THE COMPANY
 2017 2016 2017 2016
 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000

 Provision for impairment of receivables
 At January 1, 10,000 3,000 10,000 3,000 
 Provisions made during the year 3,500 7,000 3,500 7,000 

 At December 31, 13,500 10,000 13,500 10,000 

10 STATED CAPITAL

 THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY
  Number of shares Stated capital
   MUR’000

 Issued shares
 At December 31, 2016 & 2017 60,445,990 446,739 

11 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

  Fair value Revaluation Associates
  reserves reserves reserves Total
  MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000

(a) THE GROUP
 2017
 Fair value changes in
 financial assets (note 8(a)) 688,364 - - 688,364 
 Surplus on revaluation of freehold land (note 5) - 45,030 - 45,030 
 Share of other comprehensive income
 of associates (note 7(b)) - - 190,106 190,106 

 Other comprehensive income for the year 688,364 45,030 190,106 923,500 

  Fair value Associates
  reserves reserves Total
  MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000

(a) THE GROUP
 2016
 Increase in fair value of available for sale
 financial assets (note 8(a)) 237,138 - 237,138 
 Reclassification adjustment for gains included
 in profit or loss (note 8(a)) (801,999) - (801,999)
 Share of other comprehensive income
 of associates (note 7(b)) - (9,569) (9,569)

 Other comprehensive income for the year (564,861) (9,569) (574,430)
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14 BORROWINGS

 THE GROUP AND  
 THE COMPANY
  2017 2016
  MUR’000 MUR’000

 Bank overdraft 27,349 18,586 

 The bank overdraft is secured by floating charges on the assets of the Company. The rate of interest on the 
overdraft is between 5.75% and 6.25%.

15 DIVIDEND

 THE GROUP AND  
 THE COMPANY
  2017 2016
  MUR’000 MUR’000

 Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:
 Proposed and paid: MUR 0.80 per share (2016: MUR 0.80 per share taking
 share split into consideration) 48,357 48,357 

16 OPERATING PROFIT

 THE GROUP THE COMPANY
 2017 2016 2017 2016
 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000

 Operating profit is arrived at after
 crediting:
 Investment income
 - Official Market 30,588 26,331 30,588 26,331 
 - DEM 1,882 2,023 1,882 2,023 
 - Unquoted 22,025 8,581 26,563 19,855 
 Rental income 1,088 1,088 - - 

  55,583 38,023 59,033 48,209 
 Share of profit from Société de Belle-Mare - - 929 981 
 Other operating income 1,128 746 1,128 746 
 Interest income 405 3,684 405 3,684 

 and charging:
 Depreciation 23 23 - - 
 Other administrative expenses 20,113 21,226 19,977 21,143 

13 TAXATION

 THE GROUP THE COMPANY
 2017 2016 2017 2016
 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000

(a) Taxation - amount recognised in  
profit or loss

 Current tax on the adjusted
 profit for the year 289 481 289 481 
 Underprovision in previous year 304 - 304 - 

  593 481 593 481 

 The tax on the Group’s and Company’s profit differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the basic 
rate of the Company as follows:

 THE GROUP THE COMPANY
 2017 2016 2017 2016
 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000

 Profit before taxation 41,528 939,637 41,043 951,818 
 Add:
 - Share of results of associates (5,023) 908 - - 

  36,505 940,545 41,043 951,818 

 Tax calculated at a rate of 15%
 (2016: 15%) 5,476 141,082 6,156 142,773 
 Income not subject to tax (8,175) (146,621) (8,855) (148,312)
 Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 2,988 6,020 2,988 6,020 
 Underprovision in previous year 304 - 304 - 

 Tax charge 593 481 593 481 

(b) Taxation - amount recognised in statement of financial position

 THE GROUP THE COMPANY
 2017 2016 2017 2016
 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000

 At January 1, 235 36 235 36 
 Current tax on the adjusted
 profit for the year 289 481 289 481 
 Under provision 304 - 304 - 
 Tax paid (539) (239) (539) (239)
 Tax deducted at source (49) (43) (49) (43)

 At December 31, 240 235 240 235 
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20 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

 THE GROUP THE COMPANY
 2017 2016 2017 2016
 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000

(a) Cash generated from operations
 Reconciliation of profit before taxation
 to cash generated from operations:
 Profit before taxation 41,528 939,637 41,043 951,818 
 Adjustments for:
 Depreciation 23 23 - - 
 Impairment losses - 14,294 - 14,294 
 Net gain on disposal/derecognition of investments - (940,537) - (940,537)
 Provision for VAT 3,500 7,000 3,500 7,000 
 Dividend in specie - (75) - (75)
 Interest expense 475 72 475 72 
 Interest income (405) (3,684) (405) (3,684)
 Share of result of associates net of dividend (486) 12,182 - - 

  44,635 28,912 44,613 28,888 

 Changes in working capital
 - trade and other receivables (2,095) 3,298 (2,268) 3,520 
 - trade and other payables (8,481) 7,355 (8,480) 7,347 

 Cash generated from operations 34,059 39,565 33,865 39,755 

(b) Non cash transactions

 The principal non-cash transactions are the corporate actions accounted as additions to investment and 
amounted to Nil (2016: MUR 962.23 million) and disposal amounted to Nil (2016 : MUR 88.88 million).

(c) Bank balances and cash

 THE GROUP THE COMPANY
 2017 2016 2017 2016
 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000

 Cash in hand and at bank 346 152 - - 
 Bank overdraft (note 14) (27,349) (18,586) (27,349) (18,586)
 Loan receivable at call (note 9) - 34,000 - 34,000 

  (27,003) 15,566 (27,349) 15,414 

17 FINANCE COSTS

 THE GROUP AND  
 THE COMPANY
  2017 2016
  MUR’000 MUR’000

 Interest on overdraft 475 72 

18 NET GAIN ON DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSET

 In 2016, a gain on derecognition of financial asset arose upon derecognition of a listed equity investment following 
an amalgamation exercise less direct cost attributable to the sale of the financial asset.

19 EARNINGS PER SHARE

 THE GROUP THE COMPANY
  2017 2016 2017 2016

 Earnings per share MUR 0.68 15.54 0.67 15.74 

 Earnings per share excluding gain 
on derecognition and impairment MUR 0.68 1.44 0.67 1.64 

 Profit attributable to equity holders MUR’000 40,935 939,156 40,450 951,337

 Profit attibutable to equity holders  
excluding gain on derecognition and  
impairment MUR’000 40,935 87,008 40,450 99,189

 Number of ordinary shares  60,445,990 60,445,990 60,445,990 60,445,990
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of the Stock Exchange of Mauritius as consultant to the 
Stock Exchange Commission and member of the Listing 
Committee. He taught Hospitality Management at the 
University of Réunion from 2000 to 2005. Since this date, 
he is working as a private consultant in management and 
finance. He is also a director of several other listed and 
non-listed companies. He is a member of the Company’s 
Investment Committee.

Clément D. Rey (48) – Group Head of Corporate 
Affairs, Executive Director 

Appointed in 2003

Mr Rey holds a Bachelor’s and a Master’s degree in 
Business Law from the United Kingdom. Before joining 
the Constance Group as Group Head of Corporate 
Affairs, he held a similar position within the Ciel Group, 
one of the largest industrial groups in Mauritius. In 
his present capacity, he has overall responsibility for 
corporate transactions and regulatory matters relating 
to the member companies of the Constance Group. He 
is a director of a number of companies in the commercial 
and financial sectors and is a member of various board 
committees.

Maxime Rey (65) – Non-executive Director, Chairman 
of the Audit (Risk Management) Committee 

Appointed in 2014

Mr Rey qualified as an accountant and started his career 
in 1973 in Mauritius in auditing before joining the Sugar 
Industry.   He moved to South Africa in 1981 where 
he worked for Kuehne and Nagel (Pty) Ltd, the South 
African arm of a leading global provider of innovative 
and fully integrated supply chain solutions.   He was 
appointed Group Financial Controller in 1989 and 
Director in 1992.  Back in Mauritius in 1993 he joined 
SWAN, one of the market leaders in the local Insurance 
sector, becoming Senior Manager - Group Finance, Loans 
& Legal until he retired in 2016.   He is a director of a 
number of Companies listed on the Stock Exchange of 
Mauritius and operating in the commercial, investment, 
sugar and tourism sectors.  

He was appointed as a Director of the Company in April 
2014 and is Chairman of the Audit (Risk Management) 
Committee.

DIRECTORS

Profile of Directors and Senior Officer 

George J. Dumbell (69) – Independent Director, 
Chairman

Appointed Director in December 2005 and Chairman 
in 2006

Mr Dumbell is an Associate of the Chartered Institute 
of Bankers (UK) with over 49 years of financial and 
commercial experience, including 34 years in various 
senior management positions, within the HSBC Group 
across the globe. In 1994, he was seconded for two and 
a half years to Eurochambres, Association of European 
Chambers of Commerce and Industry, in Belgium, as 
Deputy Secretary General and Managing Director of 
its business arm – an organisation representing over 
14 million companies across Western, Central and 
Eastern Europe. Mr Dumbell is a former director of 
several financial institutions in Asia and Europe, and of a 
number of listed companies in Mauritius. He sat on the 
founding board of the Mauritius Institute of Directors 
and is currently a fellow of this Institute and member of 
its Directors’ Forum. In 2003, he undertook a two-year 
consultancy contract with the Mauritius Commercial 
Bank Ltd in the field of Risk Management. Mr Dumbell 
is currently a director of the  ChrysCapital Group of 
Companies.

Nicolas Boullé (58) – Independent Director

Appointed in 2014

Me Boullé is a qualified notary, practicing since 1990. He 
has worked in close collaboration, in the first instance, 
with Me Pierre Doger de Spéville and thereafter with Me 
Jacques Montocchio until 2002. Me Boullé now practices 
independently but in close collaboration with three other 
colleagues.

Marc Freismuth (66) – Independent Director 

Appointed in 2007

Mr Freismuth holds a MPhil degree in Economics from 
Sorbonne (Paris) and an agrégation  in Economics and 
Management. He was a lecturer at the University of 
Montpellier (France) until July 1988, when he decided 
to join the University of Mauritius as lecturer of 
Management and Finance until July 1994. While in the 
latter post, Mr Freismuth participated in the setting-up 

21 CAPITAL COMMITMENT

 THE GROUP AND  
 THE COMPANY
  2017 2016
  MUR’000 MUR’000

 Capital commitment is in respect of investment in shares contracted for  
but not provided in the financial statements - 16,752

22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

 THE GROUP Sale of goods Management fees/ Finance Dividend Amount owed
  or services Professional fees income income by/(to)

  2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
  MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000

 Associates - - - - - - 4,537 11,274 4,537 3,190 
 Enterprise having common 

directors with significant 
influence 559 559 (13,319) (16,834) 396 3,675 66 132 (458) 27,386 

 THE COMPANY Management fees/ Finance Dividend Amount owed
  Professional fees income income by/(to)

  2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
  MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000 MUR’000

 Subsidiary - - - - - - 420 477 
 Associates - - - - 4,537 11,274 4,537 3,190 
 Enterprise having common  

directors with significant influence (13,290) (16,805) 396 3,675 66 132 (730) 26,966 

 THE GROUP AND  
 THE COMPANY
  2017 2016
  MUR’000 MUR’000

 Key management personnel compensation:
 Directors’ remuneration 910 915 

(a) Related party transactions have been made in the normal course of business under normal terms and conditions.
(b) The oustanding balances at year end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.
(c) There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables and payables.
(d) For the year ended 2017, the Group has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amount owed by related 

parties (2016: Nil).
(e) The amounts receivable and payable in respect to related parties have maturity within one year.

23 SEGMENT INFORMATION

 The Company has no separate business or geographical segment.
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I/We

of

being a member of Belle Mare Holding Limited, hereby appoint

or failing him/her,

as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual Meeting of the Company to be held on Friday  
29th  June 2018 at 13h30, and at any adjournment thereof.

I/We desire this proxy to be used (see Note 1) as follows:

For Against Abstain

3 To adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company and the Group for 
the year ended 31st December 2017

4 To authorise the Board of Directors to fix the remuneration of the External 
Auditors, BDO & Co., who have expressed their willingness to continue to act as 
External Auditors of the Company and will be automatically reappointed

5 By separate resolutions and in accordance with article 21.2 (1) of the Constitution 
of the Company, to re-elect the following persons who, retiring by rotation, offer 
themselves for re-election as directors of the Company:

 a. Mr Jean Ribet
 b. Mr Noël Adolphe Vallet

Dated this ……………………………      day of ……………………        2018

Signature (s)

Notes

1. Please mark in the appropriate box how you wish to vote. If no specific direction as to voting is given, the proxy will exercise 
his/her discretion as to how he/she votes or whether he/she abstains from voting.

2. The instrument appointing a proxy, any general power of attorney or written resolution appointing a representative should 
reach the Company Secretary, at the registered office of the Company, 5th Floor, Labama House, 35 Sir William Newton Street, 
Port Louis, not less than 24 hours prior to the time scheduled for the meeting, i.e. by 13h30 on Thursday 28th June 2018 (being 
the last business day before the meeting). In default, the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

 For the purpose of this Annual Meeting, the Directors have resolved, in compliance with section 120 of the Companies 
Act 2001, that the shareholders who are entitled to receive notice of the meeting and attend such meeting shall be those 
shareholders whose names are registered in the share register of the Company as at 5th June 2018.

DIRECTORS (continued)

Noël Adolphe Vallet (52) – Non-executive Director

Appointed in 1997

After studying Management in South Africa, Mr Vallet 
gained professional experience in the UK before returning 
to Mauritius to take up the position of the Manager 
of Fleurs des Tropiques Exports Ltée, a company that 
was then part of the Constance Group. He held that 
position for two years before moving on to a number of 
other Management functions within the Group. He was 
responsible, as Project Manager, for setting up L’Aventure 
du Sucre, Mauritius’ sugar museum. He left the Group 
in 2006 and now runs his own business in the events 
industry, as Managing Director of Bedouin Tents and 
Rocket Fireworks. Mr Vallet is very involved in sports 
activities and holds positions of responsibility in a few 
clubs and associations.

Directorships in other companies listed on 
the official market of the Stock Exchange of 
Mauritius Ltd:

The United 
Basalt 

Products 
Ltd IBL Ltd

Lux Island 
Resorts Ltd

Marc Freismuth ü

Maxime Rey ü ü

Jean Ribet ü

SENIOR OFFICER

Kevin Chan Too (40) – Group Head of Finance

Mr Chan Too is a Fellow of the Association of Chartered 
Certified Accountants. He joined the Constance Group 
in 2007 as Group Financial Accountant and is currently 
its Group Head of Finance with main responsibility for 
finance, accounting, treasury and internal control. Prior to 
joining the Constance Group, Mr Chan Too held various 
finance and accounting positions within listed companies 
dealing in the property, finance and investment sectors.

Jean Ribet (58) – Group Chief Executive Officer, 
Executive Director

Appointed in 2007

Mr Ribet is a member of the South African Institute 
of Chartered Accountants and holds a Bachelor of 
Commerce degree. He joined the Constance Group as 
Group Financial Controller in 1991. He was appointed 
Group Chief Executive Officer in 2004 and has overall 
responsibility for the agro-industrial, tourism and 
investment activities of the Constance Group. 

Georgina Rogers (55) – Independent Director

Appointed in 1998

Mrs Rogers holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from 
the University of Natal in South Africa. She practised as an 
accountant until 1995 and was involved in the realisation 
of real-estate development projects for 20 years.  

Proxy FormProfile of Directors and Senior Officer 
(continued)
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